

CHILD PROTECTION POLICY

This policy applies to all schools within the Lionheart Educational Trust

Approved by the Trust

2024 - 2025

Name of School: Sir Jonathan Nort	h Girls' College
Signature:	(Chair of Governors)
Print Name:	



Contents

Intro	duction	3
Polic	y Statement and Principles	3
1.	Purpose and Aims	5
2.	Child Protection and Safeguarding Statement	5
3.	Maintaining a Child Centred and Coordinated Approach to Safeguarding:	6
4.	Safeguarding and Promoting the Welfare of Children	6
5.	Whole School/College Approach to Safeguarding:	6
6.	Safeguarding is Not Just About Protecting Children From Deliberate Harm. It Also Relates the Broader Aspects of Care and Education Including:	
7.	Safeguarding Can Involve a Range of Potential Issues	7
8.	Online Safety	10
9.	Identifying Concerns	11
10.	Indicators of Abuse, Neglect and Exploitation:	11
11.	Safeguarding Issues:	13
12.	Child on Child Abuse	13
13.	Alternative Providers and Other Agencies	15
14.	CPD, Culture and Ethos	16
15.	Responsibilities of the DSL/DSL Team	17
16.	The Seven Main Elements of Our Child Protection Policy	17
17.	Providing a Safe Environment	18
18.	Additional Measures	20
19.	Procedures for Identifying and Reporting Cases	21
20.	Supporting Children and Working in Partnership	23
21.	Staff and Safe Recruitment	24
22.	Links to Other Local Authority Policies	25
23.	Raising Awareness - Roles and Responsibilities	26
24.	Safeguarding Training	27
25.	Staff Responsibilities	28
26.	Senior Leadership/Management Team Responsibilities:	29
27.	Teachers (including ECTs) and Headteachers – Professional Duty	30
28.	Designated Safeguarding Lead	30
29.	The Designated Safeguarding Lead is Expected To:	31
30.	Work With Others	31



31.	The Training Undertaken Should Enable the Designated Safeguarding Lead to:	. 33
32.	Child Protection File - The Senior Designated Safeguarding Lead is Responsible:	.34
33.	Headteacher	.34
34.	Governing Body and Multi-Academy Trust	.35
35.	Looked After Children – The Role of Designated Teacher and the Designated Safeguarding Lead	.38
36.	Children with Special Educational Needs	.38
37.	Acting Where Concerns are Identified.	.39
38.	Confidentiality	.40
39.	Information Sharing	.41
40.	Records and Monitoring [KCSiE 2024 Paragraphs 68 to 70, Part Four, Part Five, Annex C]	.41
41.	Why Recording is Important.	.42
42.	The Child Protection (CP), Child in Need (CiN) or Confidential File	.43
43.	Transfer of Child's Child Protection File, Child in Need, LAC, or Confidential File (Statutory Requirement):	.43
44.	Recording Practice	.44
45.	Educating Young People – Opportunities to Teach Safeguarding	.45
46.	Helplines and Reporting	.45
Appe	ndix 1	.49
Appe	ndix 2	.50



Introduction

Note: this policy is based upon Leicestershire's LA Model Child Protection Policy template.

The content within this Child Protection Policy reflects the statutory requirements within DfE Keeping Children Safe in Education (KCSiE) 2024, which will come into force on the 1st of September 2024 and replaces KCSiE 2023. Content based upon the changes to KCSiE 2024 are highlighted in blue.

Policy Statement and Principles

Sir Jonathan North Girls' College fully recognises the contribution it can make to protect children and support pupils in school. The aim of the policy is to safeguard and promote our pupils' welfare, safety and health by fostering an honest, open, caring and supportive environment. We encourage children to talk about their worries and to report their concerns to us in a number of alternative ways. Our pupils' welfare is of paramount importance. Safeguarding concerns must be passed promptly to the Designated Safeguarding Lead (and Deputies as appropriate) who must respond to the concerns in a timely manner to safeguard and promote children's welfare.

This policy is consistent with:

- the legal duty to safeguard and promote the welfare of children, as described in section 175 of the Education Act 2002 [or section 157 of the Education Act 2002 for independent schools and academies] and the statutory guidance "Keeping children safe in education Statutory guidance for schools and colleges", 2024 and "Working Together to Safeguard Children", 2023.
- the Leicestershire and Rutland Safeguarding Children Partnership Multi-Agency Safeguarding Arrangements

This policy should be read in conjunction with:

- LET Staff Code of Conduct Policy
- LET Complaints Policy
- LET Behaviour Policy Secondary
- LET Behaviour Policy Primary
- LET E-Safety Policy

This Child Protection Policy will be reviewed by the Designated Safeguarding Lead Claire Greaves on a regular basis to ensure it remains current and incorporates all revisions made to local or national safeguarding guidance. This policy will be fully reviewed as a minimum once a year during the autumn term and provided to the Chair of the Local Governing Body for approval and sign off at the first autumn term meeting.

Date of next review - 19.09.25



Role	Name	Contact Details		
Headteacher/Principa	Helen Coles-Hennessy	helen.coles- hennessy@sirjonathannorth.org.uk		
Designated Governor for Child Protection/ Safeguarding	Mike Gamble	Mike.gamble@newbridge .org.uk		
Designated Safeguarding Lead	Claire Greaves	claire.greaves@sirjonathannorth.org.uk		
Deputy Safeguarding Lead	Ruth Jones	ruth.jones@sirjonathannorth.org.uk		
Names of additional Safeguarding Leads	Kirstie Goodwin Danielle John Kalisha Wiltshire Simon Pope Adele Montgomery Nicola Coton Carl Hartley Liz Young Steve Reynard Helen Coles-Hennessy	Kirstie.goodwin@sirjonathannorth.org.uk Danielle. John@sirjonathannorth.org.uk Kalisha.wiltshire@sirjonathannorth.org.uk Adele.montgomery@sirjonathannorth.org.u k nicola.coton@sirjonathannorth.org.uk carl. hartley@sirjonathannorth.org.uk stephen.reynard@sirjonathannorth.org.uk helen.coles- hennessy@sirjonathannorth.org.uk		
Senior Lead in the absence of the onsite DSLs	Helen Coles-Hennessy	helen.coles- hennessy@sirjonathannorth.org.uk		
Leicester and the Leicestershire and Rutland Safeguarding Children Partnerships Procedures Manual.	Report Your Concerns about a Child or Young Person	LCC report neglect or abuse		



LA Safeguarding Children in Education Officer	Jude Atkins	0116-4542440 Lado-allegations-referrals@leicester.gov.uk		
LA Child Protection Contact/LADO	0116-4542440 Lado-allegations- referrals@leicester.gov.u k	Allegations Line: 0116 4542440 Lado-allegations-referrals@leicester.gov.uk Outside of office hours, contact the Leicester City Duty and Advice Service 0116-4541004		
First Response	For urgent concerns about a child who needs a social worker or police officer today	0116-4541004		
Police (to report a crime and immediate risk of harm or abuse to child)		In an emergency 999 (only)		
NSPCC help/whistleblowing line	Line is available 8.00am to 8.00pm Monday to Friday	0800 028 0285- email: help@nspcc.org.uk		

1. Purpose and Aims

- 1.1 Our policy applies to all staff, governors and volunteers working in the school/academy/college and takes into account statutory guidance provided by the Department for Education and local guidance issued by the Leicestershire Safeguarding Children Partnership.
- 1.2 We will ensure that all parents/carers are made aware of our responsibilities regarding child protection procedures and how we will safeguard and promote the welfare of their children through the publication of this school/college/academy child protection policy. These duties and responsibilities, as set out within the Education Act 2002 section 175 and 157, DfE Statutory Guidance Keeping Children Safe in Education 2024 and HM Working Together to Safeguard Children 2023 are incorporated into this policy.

2. Child Protection and Safeguarding Statement

- 2.1 We recognise our moral and statutory responsibility to safeguard and promote the welfare of all pupils. We will endeavour to provide a safe and welcoming environment where children are respected and valued. We will be alert to the signs of abuse, neglect and exploitation and follow our procedures to ensure that children receive effective support, protection, and justice.
- 2.2 The procedures contained in this policy apply to all staff, supply staff, volunteers, and governors/members of the Lionheart Educational Trust and are consistent with those



from the Leicester and the Leicestershire and Rutland Safeguarding Children Partnerships.

3. Maintaining a Child Centred and Coordinated Approach to Safeguarding:

- 3.1 Everyone who works at school/college understands they are an important part of the wider safeguarding system for children and accepts that safeguarding and promoting the welfare of children is everyone's responsibility and everyone who comes into contact with children and their families has a role to play. To fulfil this responsibility effectively, all our staff, including supply staff and volunteers will ensure their approach is child-centred and will be supported to consider, at all times, what is in the best interests of the child.
- 3.2 We recognise no single practitioner can have a full picture of a child's needs and circumstances. If children and families are to receive the right help at the right time, everyone who comes into contact with them has a role to play in identifying concerns, sharing information, and taking prompt action.
- **3.3 Safeguarding children is defined as:** The actions we take to promote the welfare of children and protect them from harm are <u>everyone's responsibility</u>. Everyone who comes into contact with children and families has a role to play.

4. Safeguarding and Promoting the Welfare of Children

- 4.1 Defined as:
 - Providing help and support to meet the needs of children as soon as problems emerge.
 - Protecting children from maltreatment, whether that is within or outside the home, including online.
 - Preventing the impairment of children's mental and physical health or development.
 - Ensuring that children grow up in circumstances consistent with the provision of safe and effective care.
 - o Taking action to enable all children to have the best outcomes.
 - **NB Definition:** Children includes everyone under the age of 18.

5. Whole School/College Approach to Safeguarding:

- 5.1 We understand the importance every member of our staff has through their contact with children in and outside of our school environment and the particular importance of the roles and relationships they have which places them in a position to identify concerns early, provide help for children and promote children's welfare and prevent concerns from escalating.
- 5.2 As a school/college we have a responsibility to provide a safe environment in which children can learn.



- 5.3 We will make every effort to identify children who may benefit from early help and put in place support as soon as a problem emerges at any point in a child's life.
- 5.4 Any staff member who has any concerns about a child's welfare should follow the processes set out in this child protection policy and raise concerns with the designated safeguarding lead or deputy without delay. Any staff member who has concerns about the conduct of an adult should report this immediately to the Headteacher. The Lionheart Adult Concerns Form is also available for this purpose. See Appendix 2 for the Low Level Concerns Policy.
- 5.5 All our staff should expect to support social workers and other agencies following any referral, especially if they were involved in being alert to or receiving a disclosure of risk, harm or abuse or harassment from a child.
- 5.6 Our senior designated safeguarding lead will provide support to staff to carry out their safeguarding duties and who will liaise closely with other services such as children's social care, police, early help, and health where required, as the designated safeguarding lead (and any deputies) are most likely to have a complete safeguarding picture and be the most appropriate person to advise on the response to safeguarding concerns.

6. Safeguarding is Not Just About Protecting Children From Deliberate Harm. It Also Relates to the Broader Aspects of Care and Education Including:

- Pupils' health and safety and emotional well-being, and their mental and physical health or development.
- Meeting the needs of children with special educational needs and/or disabilities.
- Meeting the legal duties on the school/college under the Equality act: will not
 unlawfully, discriminate against pupils or students based protected characteristics; we
 will carefully consider how we support pupils/students regarding particular protected
 characteristics; we will take positive action to deal with particular disadvantages
 affecting pupils or students.
- Where a child receives elective home education and has an EHCP, the LA should review the plan working with parents and carers.
- The use of reasonable force.
- Meeting the needs of children with medical conditions.
- Providing first aid.
- Educational visits and off- site education.
- Intimate care and emotional wellbeing.
- On-line safety and associated issues including <u>filtering and monitoring</u> in accordance with DfE monitoring standards.
- Appropriate arrangements to ensure school security, considering the local context.
- Keeping children safe from risks, harm, exploitation and sexual violence and sexual harassment between children: KCSiE 2024 Annex A.

7. Safeguarding Can Involve a Range of Potential Issues

7.1 Such as:

• Neglect, physical abuse, sexual abuse, emotional abuse and exploitation.



- Contextualised also known as extra-familial abuse.
- Bullying, including online bullying (by text message, on social networking sites, and prejudice-based bullying and being aware of the ease of access to mobile phone networks.
- The approach to online safety, including appropriate filtering and monitoring on school/college devices and school/college networks for home use.
- Going frequently missing and who are 'absent from education' going 'missing from care or home' and the risks this poses on repeat occasions and for prolonged periods.
- Domestic Abuse including teenage relationship abuse.
- Domestic Abuse including where they see, hear or experience its effects.
- Racist, disability- based, homophobic, bi-phobic, or transphobic abuse.
- Gender based violence/violence against women and girls.
- Risk of extremist behaviour and/or radicalisation and susceptible to being at risk of being drawn into terrorism.
- Child sexual exploitation, human trafficking, modern slavery, sexual or criminal exploitation.
- A young carer.
- Has a mental health need and has an effect on school attendance and progress.
- Has special educational needs (whether or not they have a statutory Education Health and Care Plan (EHCP).
- Privately fostered.
- Has returned home to their family from care.
- Has a family member in prison or is affected by parental offending.
- Child-on-Child Abuse (broadened by KCSiE 2024 to include children abusing other children, other varying forms of bullying including online and sexually harmful behaviour, sexual violence, and sexual harassment (further defined in KCSiE 2024 Part Five).
- Harm outside the home extra familial harm.
- The impact of new technologies, including 'sexting' and accessing pornography.
- Issues which may be specific to a local area or population, is showing signs of being drawn into anti-social or criminal behaviour, including gang activity or involvement and associations with organised crime groups or county lines.
- In possession of a knife and or involved in knife crime, youth violence, criminal child exploitation (CCE).
- Is in family circumstances which present challenges for the child, such as drug and alcohol misuse, adult mental health issues and domestic abuse/harm.
- Is at risk of or from serious violence and violent crime.
- Persistent absence from education, including persistent absence for part of the school day.
- At risk of suspension or permanent exclusion
- Particular issues affecting children including domestic abuse and violence, female genital mutilation, and honour-based abuse.
- Being subject to any conduct where the purpose is to cause a child to marry before their eighteenth birthday, even if violence, threats, or another form of coercion are not used. As with the existing forced marriage law, this applies to non-binding, unofficial 'marriages' as well as legal marriages (Law change on Forced Marriage, February 2023).



- 'Upskirting'- The Voyeurism (Offences) Act, which is commonly known as Upskirting Act, came into force on 12 April 2019. Upskirting is a criminal offence and reportable by all teachers (KCSiE Annex A).
- 7.2 All our staff and volunteers are aware of the indicators of **abuse**, **neglect and exploitation** and know what to look for is vital for the early identification so that
 support can be put in place. Our staff and volunteers are also aware of the specific
 safeguarding issues that indicate or inform of concerns or incidents linked to child
 criminal exploitation and child sexual exploitation and know to report concerns
 directly to the designated safeguarding or a member of the senior leadership team
 should the designated safeguarding lead not be available for children who may be in
 need of help or protection.
- 7.3 Our staff recognise that children may not feel ready or know how to tell someone that they are being abused, exploited, or neglected, and/or they may not recognise their experiences as harmful. Children may also feel embarrassed, humiliated, or could be being threatened not to tell, so not feel able to share what is happening to them. Alternatively, we recognise children may not want to make a disclosure or talk about what is happening due to their vulnerability, disability and/or sexual orientation or language barriers. This should not prevent staff from having a professional curiosity and speaking to the DSL if they have concerns about a child and agree a way forward to support the child and determine how best to build trusted relationships with children and young people which facilitate good opportunities for communication.
- 7.4 All staff should always speak to the designated safeguarding lead, or deputy at the earliest opportunity.
- As a school/college we are aware that abuse, neglect, and safeguarding issues are rarely standalone events and cannot be covered by one definition or one label alone. In most cases, multiple issues will overlap with one another, therefore all staff should always be vigilant and always raise any concerns with the designated safeguarding lead (or deputy).
- 7.6 **All** staff should be aware that safeguarding incidents and/or behaviours can be associated with factors outside the school or college and/or can occur between children outside of our school environment.
- 7.7 All our staff have received information and training regarding the risks that can take place outside the child's family. This is known as extra-familial harm and these can take a variety of different forms and children can be vulnerable to multiple harms including (but not limited to) sexual exploitation, criminal exploitation, sexual abuse, serious youth violence and county lines.
- 7.8 Our staff are aware that technology offers many opportunities but is a significant component in many safeguarding and wellbeing issues. Children are at risk of abuse online as well as face to face. Children can also abuse their peers online, this can take the form of abusive, harassing, and misogynistic messages, the non-consensual sharing of indecent images, especially around chat groups, and the sharing of abusive images and pornography, to those who do not want to receive such content.
- 7.9 All our staff have 'an understanding of the expectations, applicable to their roles and responsibilities in relation to filtering and monitoring' of ICT systems and regular monitoring of school's equipment and networks.



8. Online Safety

- 8.1 Our school/college approach to online safety, including appropriate filtering and monitoring on school devices and school networks is reflected in this Child Protection Policy including awareness of the ease of access to mobile phone networks. (See KCSiE 2023 Paragraph 138). Note: Lionheart uses Lightspeed for filtering and monitoring purposes.
- 8.2 Our DSL and the DDSL team has the lead responsibility in this area, which is overseen and regularly reviewed by the Governing body/ trust, along with considering the number of and age range of their children, those who are potentially at greater risk of harm, and how often they access the IT system along with the proportionality of costs versus safeguarding risks.
- 8.3 Our Trust will ensure they maintain oversight of the LET E-Safety Policy and the arrangements put in place to ensure appropriate filtering and monitoring on school devices and the school network. The appropriateness of any filtering and monitoring systems will in part be informed by the risk assessment required by the Prevent Duty as required by KCSiE 2024 paragraph 140-150.

8.4 This will include:

- identify and assign roles and responsibilities to manage filtering and monitoring systems.
- review filtering and monitoring provision at least annually.
- block harmful and inappropriate content without unreasonably impacting teaching and learning.
- have effective monitoring strategies in place that meet the school/colleges safeguarding need.
- review and discuss the standards with the leadership team, IT staff and service providers to ensure the school/college meets the standard published by the Department for Education filtering and monitoring standards.
- 8.5 Our school content filtering system is managed at Trust level by the Head of IT. Our Trust-wide content filtering system is provided by Lightspeed and provides protection for all devices connected to our school network. This system also uses cloud-based technology to monitor and protect any device given to pupils both in school and at home. Lightspeed blocks all harmful content and has a full reporting suite that alerts DSLs so that even unsuccessful searches can be reviewed. The solution includes an out of hours service to allow alerts to be triaged 24 hours a day, 7 days a week.
- 8.6 Our Trust will ensure an overview is maintained to ensure standards. They will hold to account IT staff and service providers regarding these standards and whether more needs to be done to support our school/college in meeting and maintaining these standards and communicating these to staff, our pupils/students, parents, carers and visitors to the school who provide teaching to children as part of the learning and educational opportunities we provide.
- 8.7 Our DSL and the DSL team will always act in the 'best interest of the child' and remain mindful of the importance with parents and carers about safeguarding concerns held for children and in particular children's access to online sites when away from school or college.



- 8.8 We will support understanding of harmful online challenges and hoaxes and share information with parents and carers and where they can get help and support.
- 8.9 All forms of abuse or harassment will be reported in accordance with national safeguarding guidance, and we will take a 'zero tolerance' approach to harassment and abuse as informed in KCSiE.
- As a school/college, should an incident or disclosure be made by a child, our staff will always reassure the child (victim) that they are being taken seriously and that they will be supported and kept safe, but we recognise that not every victim will view themselves as such. We will also be mindful of the use of other terminology such as 'alleged perpetrator(s)' or 'perpetrator(s)' as in some cases the abusive behaviour will have been harmful to the perpetrator as well.
- 8.11 We will do our best to ensure children understand the law on child-on-child abuse is there to protect them rather than criminalise them. In doing this we will discuss with relevant statutory safeguarding agencies to ensure all concerns or incidents are addressed fully, and where required different types of assessment and services are put in place where required and in accordance with the Pathway to Provision v 9.1.

9. Identifying Concerns

- 9.1 All members of staff, volunteers and governors will be aware of indicators of abuse, neglect and exploitation know, will know how to identify pupils who may be being harmed and then how to respond to a pupil who discloses abuse, or where others raise concerns about them. Our staff will be familiar with procedures to be followed and will receive safeguarding and child protection (including online safety) updates.
- 9.2 Staff understand that abuse, neglect, and safeguarding issues are rarely standalone events that can be covered by one definition, and that in most cases multiple issues will overlap with each other. Staff who regularly come into contact with children are aware of the DfE guidance What to do if you're worried a child is being abused
- 9.3 The four main categories of child abuse are as follows:
 - 1. Physical Abuse
 - 2. Emotional Abuse
 - 3. Sexual Abuse
 - 4. Neglect

10. Indicators of Abuse, Neglect and Exploitation:

10.1 **Abuse:** a form of maltreatment of a child. Somebody may abuse or neglect a child by inflicting harm or by failing to act to prevent harm. Children may be abused in a family or in an institutional or community setting by those known to them or, more rarely, by others. Abuse can take place wholly online, or technology may be used to facilitate offline abuse. Children may be abused by an adult or adults or by another child or children. Harm can include ill treatment that is not physical as well as the impact of witnessing ill treatment of others. This can be particularly relevant, for example, in relation to the impact on children of all forms of domestic abuse, including where they see, hear or experience its effects.



- 10.2 **Physical abuse:** a form of abuse which may involve hitting, shaking, throwing, poisoning, burning, or scalding, drowning, suffocating, or otherwise causing physical harm to a child. Physical harm may also be caused when a parent or carer fabricates the symptoms of, or deliberately induces, illness in a child.
- 10.3 **Emotional abuse:** the persistent emotional maltreatment of a child such as to cause severe and adverse effects on the child's emotional development. It may involve conveying to a chid they are worthless or unloved, inadequate, or valued only insofar as they meet the needs of another person. It may include not giving the child opportunities to express their views, deliberately silencing them or 'making fun' of what they say or how they communicate. It may feature age or developmentally inappropriate expectation being imposed on children. These may include interactions that are beyond a child's developmental capability as well as over protection and limitation of exploration and learning or preventing the child from participating in normal social interaction. It may involve seeing or hearing the ill-treatment of another. It may involve serious bullying (including cyberbullying), causing children to feel frightened or in danger, or the exploitation or corruption of children. Some level of emotional abuse is involved in all types of maltreatment of a child, although it may occur alone.
- Sexual abuse: involves forcing or enticing a child or young person to take part in sexual activities, not necessarily involving violence, whether or not the child is aware of what is happening. The activities may involve physical contact, including assault by penetration (for example rape or oral sex) or non-penetrative acts such as masturbation, kissing, rubbing, and touching outside of clothing. They may also include non-contact activities, such as involving children to look at, or in the production of, sexual images, watching sexual activities, encouraging children to behave in sexually inappropriate ways, or grooming a child in preparation for abuse. Sexual abuse is not solely perpetrated by adult males. Women can also commit acts of sexual abuse, as can other children. The sexual abuse of children by other children is a specific safeguarding issue (also known as child-on-child abuse) in education and all staff should be aware of it and of their school or colleges policy and procedures for dealing with it.
- 10.5 **Neglect:** the persistent failure to meet a child's basic physical and/or psychological needs, likely to result in the serious impairment of the child's health or development. Neglect may occur during pregnancy, for example, because of maternal substance abuse. Once a child is born, neglect may involve a parent or carer failing to; provide adequate food, clothing, and shelter (including exclusion from home or abandonment); protect a child from physical and emotional harm or danger; ensure adequate supervision (the use of inadequate caregivers); or ensure access to appropriate medical care or treatment. It may also include neglect of, or unresponsiveness to, a child's basic emotional needs.
- 10.6 **Child Criminal Exploitation**: occurs where an individual or group takes advantage of an imbalance of power to coerce, control, manipulate or deceive a child or young person under the age of 18. The victim may have been criminally exploited even if the activity appears consensual.



Child Criminal Exploitation does not always involve physical contact; it can also occur through the use of technology. Criminal exploitation often happens alongside sexual or other forms of exploitation.

Child Criminal exploitation is broader than just county lines and includes for instance children forced to work on cannabis farms, to commit theft, shoplift or pickpocket, or to threaten other young people.

10.7 Child sexual exploitation (CSE) is a type of sexual abuse. It happens when a child or young person is coerced, manipulated or deceived into sexual activity in exchange for things that may need or want like gifts, drugs, money, status and affection.

11. Safeguarding Issues:

- 11.1 All staff should have an awareness of safeguarding issues that can put children at risk of harm. Behaviours linked to issues such as drug taking and or alcohol misuse, deliberately missing education, unexplainable and/or persistent absences from education and consensual and non-consensual sharing of nudes and semi-nude images and/or videos can be signs that children are at risk.
- Our Trust-wide content filtering solution, Lightspeed, is device agnostic and allows us to protect all devices used by our pupils both on site and at home. The solution includes key word filtering which allows staff to intervene with difficult issues such as online abuse, grooming and suicide.
 As set out in our LET E-Safety Policy, parents/carers are provided with regular e-safety guidance including different ways to access support.

12. Child on Child Abuse

We recognise that children sometimes display harmful behaviour themselves and that even if there are no reports, it may still be happening. Incidents or allegations will be referred on for appropriate support and intervention. Such abuse is unacceptable and will not be tolerated at all or passed off as "banter", "just having a laugh" or "part of growing up". This abuse could for example include sexual violence and sexual harassment, "upskirting", initiation/hazing type violence, all forms of bullying, abuse in intimate relationships between peers, consensual and non-consensual sharing of indecent images, causing someone to engage in sexual activity without consent and physical violence (eg hitting, kicking, shaking, biting, hair pulling, etc). This may be experienced by both boys and girls; however, girls are more likely to be the victims and boys perpetrators. Some pupils may be more at risk of harm from specific issues such as sexual violence, homophobic, biphobic or transphobic bullying or racial discrimination. We will therefore take positive action to create a culture of support and to ensure that girls and vulnerable groups such as LGBT and pupils from ethnic minority backgrounds feel confident to bring forward any concerns and have a safe space to talk to trusted staff about their experiences. There are different school and local authority or Safeguarding Children Partnership guidance and policies which detail the school's procedures to address and minimise these concerns including for example;

- LET Behaviour Policy Primary
- LET Behaviour Policy Secondary
- LET Anti-Bullying Policy Primary
- LET Anti-Bullying Policy Secondary



- LET E-Safety Policy
- DfE guidance Part 5 of "Keeping children safe in education".
- Our school/college ethos demonstrates that the effective safeguarding of children can only be achieved by putting children at the centre of a system where we listen and hear what they say. Every individual within Sir Jonathan North Girls' College will play their part, including working with professionals from other agencies, particularly social workers, to meet the needs of our most vulnerable children and keep them safe. We will take opportunities to teach children about important safeguarding issues in a way that is age appropriate.
- 12.2 All students will be encouraged to report to a trusted adult in college all safeguarding concerns and will be taught about alternative ways of doing this both in college and elsewhere e.g. online via: tellsomeone@sirjonathannorth.org.uk. They will always be taken seriously and never given the impression that they are creating a problem by reporting their concern or made to feel ashamed. It is recognised that even where no reports are received, this does not mean that such abuse is not taking place. It could just be that it has not been reported. Where an incident has occurred or specific risks are identified, the details will be added to a safeguarding or behaviour record for the students concerned and a thorough investigation conducted by the DSL, where appropriate. A written risk assessment will be undertaken by the DSL in order to minimise the risk of further harm and to ensure the safety of all staff and students. Parents or carers of the students involved will be informed as soon as it is appropriate to do so. Support plans will be written and help offered, by different adults in college (to avoid a possible conflict of interest), to the alleged victim, the student or young person accused and any other students involved. A referral to any relevant outside agency will be made e.g. Police or Social Care. Detailed guidance and procedures are included in the linked guidance and college policies listed above.
- 12.3 Our school/college is led by senior members of staff and *governors and trustees* whose aims are to provide a safe environment and vigilant culture where children and young people can learn and be safeguarded. If there are safeguarding concerns, we will respond with appropriate action in a timely manner for those children who may need help or who may be suffering, or likely to suffer, significant harm.
- 12.4 Where staff members have concerns about a child (as opposed to a child being in immediate danger) they will decide what action to take in conjunction with the Designated Safeguarding Lead. Although we advocate that any staff member can make a referral to children's social care or First Response, especially where a child is identified as being in immediate danger, they should however ensure that the Designated Safeguarding Lead (DSL), or a member of the senior leadership team is informed as soon as possible.
- 12.5 We also ensure that all our staff are clear that whilst they should discuss and agree with the DSL any actions to be taken, they are able to escalate their concerns and contact the Duty and Advice Service or social care to seek support for the child if despite the discussion with the DSL their concerns remain. Staff are also informed of the *school or colleges* whistle blowing procedures and the contact details for the Local Authority LADO and NSPCC helpline.



13. Alternative Providers and Other Agencies

- 13.1 Sir Jonathan North Girls' College works with other agencies including statutory safeguarding partners to support vulnerable children and maintains close contact with social care and social workers. For example, by holding regular meetings in school, taking part in partnership forums/events, or accessing multi-agency training. We also offer to facilitate meetings for individual children and families in school/college to support easier local access and involvement by children, parents and or carers.
- 13.2 Where a school places a pupil with an alternative provision provider, the school continues to be responsible for the safeguarding of that pupil and should be satisfied that the provider can meet the needs of the pupil.
- 13.3 Children who attend alternative education often have complex needs, it is important governing bodies/trusts and designated safeguarding leads ensure children are fully always supported, and the alternative setting is aware of any additional risks of harm that pupils may be vulnerable to. Information sharing for pupils who receive education provision outside of a mainstream setting is vital to support the child and ensure the learning environment where they are placed has all necessary information for the child before they access the provision. The working together principles are key to keep the child safe and understanding the vulnerabilities needing to be supported. This should include up to date contact details for the professionals working with the child and family.
- 13.4 Schools should also obtain written confirmation from the alternative provision provider that appropriate safeguarding checks have been conducted on individuals working at the establishment, i.e., those checks that the school would otherwise perform in respect of its own staff.
- 13.5 Sir Jonathan North Girls' College supports the management and review of children in Alternative Provision in the following ways:

Leaders ensure that all providers are fully risk assessed and have appropriate safeguarding procedures in place.

The attendance of the students who are off-site is checked by us via CLM by 10 am daily and if the child is not at their placement, we contact home to alert parents in order to check on the welfare of the child in line with our school attendance policy. Weekly welfare checks are made to all students who are off site for 5 days. This is in the form of bi-weekly visits and phone calls.

There is regular communication, weekly if not more often, in place with the alternative provision providers (by email, phone and visits) and a dedicated member of our staff ensures that regular welfare and progress visits, once every half term at the minimum, are made to the providers.

For all students who attend off site provisions for 5 days in total, there are termly progress review meetings held in school with parents and students. Providers are invited to attend these review meetings but are asked to provide a report of the students progress as a minimum expectation.



All students in off-site provision are monitored, visited, mentored and safeguarded. All AP providers are given the contact details of our Safeguarding Lead so they can report any safeguarding issues directly to us.

Local Authority approved taxi companies ensure that their drivers have a full DBS in place and that they are given our safeguarding card so that they can easily report any safeguarding concerns to us directly. We have provided the taxi company with safeguarding cards to distribute to their drivers. This gives details of NCL safeguarding leads, contact numbers and what to do if a student makes a disclosure. We have a copy of the taxi company's public liability insurance and Private Operator Licence

- 13.6 The Designated Safeguarding Lead (DSL) or headteacher, who is familiar with national and local guidance, will share concerns, where appropriate, with the relevant agencies.
- 13.7 When concerns are raised, if appropriate we will contact Leicester or Leicestershire social care. We work with school nurse, relate counsellor, ELSA, ED psych.
- 13.8 The school/college has a dedicated email address so that any allegation or incident that happens on the school/college premises out of hours can be reported (e.g., community groups, sports associations, or service providers that run extra-curricular activities etc.). The email address is: dsl@sirjonathannorth.org.uk.org.uk

 Upon receiving such a disclosure the school/college will follow the safeguarding policies and procedures set out in this document, including informing the LADO where appropriate to do so.

14. CPD, Culture and Ethos

14.1 All staff receive annual safeguarding training on KCSIE as well as half termly on-line training modules. Staff understanding is checked through regular quizzing and staff voice during briefings and workshops. As part of Lionheart Trust, Sir Jonathan North Girls' College, undergoes an annual safeguarding review by the Lionheart Safeguarding Lead.

When new staff join mid year / safeguarding induction / quiz

14.2 The college's safer recruitment processes follow the statutory guidance: "Keeping children safe in education, Part Three: Safer recruitment."

The college will provide all the relevant information in references for a member of staff about whom there have been safeguarding concerns i.e. about child protection / inappropriate conduct. Cases in which the conclusion of an allegation has been unsubstantiated, unfounded, false or malicious will not be included in employer 19 references.

A history of repeated safeguarding concerns or allegations which have all been found to be unsubstantiated, malicious etc. will also not be included in a reference.

The college has an open safeguarding ethos regularly addressing safeguarding responsibilities during staff meetings and fostering an ongoing culture of vigilance. All



new staff and volunteers receive a safeguarding induction and are briefed on the code of conduct for adults working with students. The Leicestershire County Council induction leaflet is given to all staff and is the basis for the safeguarding induction. Additional training is provided each half term in the form of an on line training module.

In line with statutory requirements, every recruitment process for college staff will have at least one member (teacher/manager or governor) who has undertaken safer recruitment training.

15. Responsibilities of the DSL/DSL Team

- 15.1 The DSL and deputies maintain a key role in raising awareness amongst staff about the needs of children who have or who have had a social worker and the barriers that those children might experience in respect of attendance, engagement and achievement at schools or college.
- 15.2 The DSL along with the Designated Teacher can inform the Governing body and Headteacher of the number of children in their cohort who have or who have had a social worker and appropriate information is shared with teachers and staff on individual children's circumstances.
- 15.3 The Designated Teacher and Senior Designated Safeguarding Lead maintain data for children who have looked after status and for children who have been involved in the care system.
- 15.4 The Designated Teacher maintains good links with the Virtual School Head to promote the educational achievement of previously looked after children. The role of virtual school heads was extended in June 2021, to include a non-statutory responsibility for the strategic oversight of the educational attendance, attainment, and progress of children with a social worker. The virtual school head should identify and engage with key professionals, helping them to understand the role they have in improving outcomes for children. This should include Designated Safeguarding Leads, social workers, headteachers, governors, Special Educational Needs Co-ordinators, mental health leads, other local authority officers.
- 15.5 The requirements and arrangements placed on Designated Safeguarding Leads and the Designated Teacher are managed through the timetable by allowing for meetings and time for DSL and Designated Teacher to undertake their duties.
- 15.6 Under the section on additional safeguarding vulnerabilities of children with SEND, the SEND Code of Practice is a source of information and support is available from specialist organisations including SENDIASS. the support services working with the school/college or resources which are available to children and families with SEND are as follows: ADHD Solutions; Early Help; Local Offer.

16. The Seven Main Elements of Our Child Protection Policy

- 16.1 There are seven main elements to our policy:
 - Providing a safe environment in which children can learn and develop.



- Ensuring we practice safe recruitment in checking the suitability of staff and volunteers to work with children.
- Developing and then implementing procedures for identifying and reporting cases, or suspected cases of abuse in and outside of school.
- Supporting pupils who have social care involvement in accordance with his/her child in need plan, child protection plan or are subject to Local Authority Care.
- Raising awareness of safeguarding children, child protection processes and equipping children with the skills needed to keep them safe in and outside of school/college.
- Working in partnership with agencies and safeguarding partners in the 'best interest of the child.'
- Ensuring we have appropriate policies and procedures to deal with child-on-child sexual violence and sexual harassment, including those that have happened outside of the school or college premises and/or online, forms of harassment and harmful sexual behaviour. Filtering and monitoring arrangements for online safety and harms are including in the LET E-Safety Policy

17. Providing a Safe Environment

- 17.1 We recognise that because of the day-to-day contact our school/college staff have with children they and we are well placed to observe the outward signs of abuse.
- 17.2 The school/academy/college will therefore:
 - 17.2.1 Establish and maintain an environment where children feel secure, are encouraged to talk, and are listened to and heard.
 - 17.2.2 Ensure children know that there are trusted adults in the school who they can approach if they are worried.
 - 17.2.3 Ensure that every effort is made to establish effective working relationships with parents, carers, and colleagues from other agencies.
 - 17.2.4 Include opportunities in the *RSHE* curriculum for children to develop the skills they need to recognise and stay safe from abuse by offering a robust PDC curriculum which is supplemented by our Global Issues programme.
 - 17.2.5 Recognise and managing risks including online safety, radicalisation and extremism, sexual exploitation, child on child sexual violence and sexual harassment, the sharing of nude and semi-nude images which has replaced what was termed as sexting.
 - 17.2.6 Support the development of healthy relationships and awareness of domestic violence and abuse, recognising that Domestic Abuse can encompass a wide range of behaviours and may involve a single incident or a pattern of incidents. That abuse can be, but is not limited to, psychological, physical, sexual, financial, or emotional harm and children can be victims of domestic abuse. They may see, hear, or experience the effects of abuse at home and/or suffer domestic abuse in their own intimate relationships (teenage relationship abuse). All of which can have a detrimental and long-term impact on their health, well-being, development, and ability to learn.
 - 17.2.7 Recognising how pressure from others and safeguarding vulnerabilities can affect their behaviour.



- 17.2.8 Recognising the link between mental health, school attendance and children 'absent from education' and the impact on learning, progress, and educational attainment.
- 17.2.9 Knowing that as a school/college we will act swiftly to address any concerns related to serious violence, gang and knife crime or child on child sexual violence or sexual harassment incidents.
- 17.2.10 Ensuring our behaviour policy includes measures to prevent bullying, including cyberbullying, harmful online challenges, hoaxes, prejudice-based and discriminatory bullying and use of social media platforms and networks is including in the LET E-Safety Policy
- 17.2.11 Maintain an on-line safety policy which address statutory filtering and monitoring standards, which take into account remote learning, and use of mobile and smart technology and is reviewed regularly to take into account any new threats are included in the LET E-Safety Policy
- 17.2.12 The response required by schools/colleges and safeguarding agencies to address any 'harm outside the home' also known as 'extra familial harm.' Schools/colleges are a place of protection and where children and young people can share concerns and seek support and are place of safety and where children and young people can form safe and trusted relationships. Through creating a whole school/college ethos and sharing excellent communication with safeguarding partners and services, children and young people can feel assured they will be listened to, heard, and offered support to enable them share sensitive information and strengthen their resilience.
- 17.2.13 Importance of our *school/colleges* ethos of working together with parents, carers, and external services to form strong and trusted partnerships which can advocate trauma informed and trauma aware responses and where trusted relationships can be formed and go on to create safe places and spaces within the community, so children and young people know how to access a place of safety outside of the school/college environment if needed.
- 17.3 With regard to harm outside the home (http://www.childexploitationeastmidlands.org.uk/) we work with external partners to provide support for families and students e. The police, DAS and CHIVA.
- 17.4 Where concerns re harm outside the home are raised, we engage in open discussion and gain advice
- 17.5 Our college embeds and teaches safeguarding as part of your broad and balanced RSHE curriculum. The Lionheart PDC curriculum is age appropriate and taught in timely fashion and students are directed to appropriate support where necessary, Content is triangulated through the assembly and tutor time programme.
- 17.6 We will take all reasonable measures to ensure any risk of harm to children's welfare is minimised inside and outside of the school/college environment.
- 17.7 Take all appropriate actions to address concerns about the welfare of a child, working to local policies and procedures in full working partnership with agencies.
- 17.8 Ensure robust child protection arrangements are in place and embedded in the daily life and practice of the school.



- 17.9 Promote pupil health and safety.
- 17.10 Promote safe practice, and challenge unsafe practice.
- 17.11 Ensure that procedures are in place to deal with allegations of abuse against teachers and other staff including volunteers, supply staff and contractors. KCSiE Part Four has two sections, the second section addresses low-level concerns. Appendix 2 outlines our Low level Concerns Policy.
- 17.12 Provide first aid and meet the health needs of children with medical conditions.
- 17.13 Ensure school site security.
- 17.14 Address drugs and substance misuse issues.
- 17.15 Support and plan for young people in custody and their resettlement back into the community.
- 17.16 Work with all agencies regarding missing children, anti-social behaviour/gang activity and violence in the community/knife crime and children at risk of sexual exploitation.
- 17.17 Everyone having a duty to safeguard children inside/outside the school environment including school trips, extended school activities, vocational placements, and alternative education packages.

18. Additional Measures

18.1 Sir Jonathan North Girls' College supports the management and review of children in Alternative Provision in the following ways:

Leaders ensure that all providers are fully risk assessed and have appropriate safeguarding procedures in place.

The attendance of the students who are off-site is checked by us via CLM by 10 am daily and if the child is not at their placement, we contact home to alert parents in order to check on the welfare of the child in line with our school attendance policy. Weekly welfare checks are made to all students who are off site for 5 days. This is in the form of bi-weekly visits and phone calls.

There is regular communication, weekly if not more often, in place with the alternative provision providers (by email, phone and visits) and a dedicated member of our staff ensures that regular welfare and progress visits, once every half term at the minimum, are made to the providers.

For all students who attend off site provisions for 5 days in total, there are termly progress review meetings held in school with parents and students. Providers are invited to attend these review meetings but are asked to provide a report of the students progress as a minimum expectation.

All students in off-site provision are monitored, visited, mentored and safeguarded. All AP providers are given the contact details of our Safeguarding Lead so they can report any safeguarding issues directly to us.



Local Authority approved taxi companies ensure that their drivers have a full DBS in place and that they are given our safeguarding card so that they can easily report any safeguarding concerns to us directly. We have provided the taxi company with safeguarding cards to distribute to their drivers. This gives details of NCL safeguarding leads, contact numbers and what to do if a student makes a disclosure. We have a copy of the taxi company's public liability insurance and Private Operator Licence

- 18.2 Our DSL, DSL team and staff will support children with mental health problems Staff are trained to identify the indicators that a child has suffered or is at risk of suffering abuse, neglect, or exploitation. Our DSL team works with pastoral team / parents, where necessary signposting to Central Access Point and GPs
- 18.3 Our college has responsibility to ensure children who may be LGBT have a trusted adult who they can be open with KCSiE acknowledged that Children who are LGBT may be targeted and informs Homophobia, biphobia, and transphobia are not phobias, they are not fears; they are forms of discrimination of or hate towards LGBT people or those perceived to be LGBT and must not be tolerated. This is done through our Diversity ambassadors / Pride Club / PDC curriculum for education and assembly programme.
- 18.4 KCSiE 2023 Annex B page 142 Child abduction and community safety incidents Child abduction is the unauthorised removal or retention of a minor from a parent or anyone with legal responsibility for the child. Child abduction can be committed by parents or other family members; by people known but not related to the victim (such as neighbours, friends, and acquaintances); and by strangers. Other community safety incidents in the vicinity of a school can raise concerns amongst children and parents, for example, people loitering nearby or unknown adults engaging children in conversation. We have staff on duty at the beginning and end of each day. We work with police to cascade specific messages and concern to our community and provide information on staying safe in the community.
 - As children get older and are granted more independence (for example, as they start walking to school on their own) it is important they are given practical advice on how to keep themselves safe.
- 18.5 Our school provides outdoor safety lessons to help children build confidence and abilities to protect themselves or know how and where they can seek help and support.

19. Procedures for Identifying and Reporting Cases

- 19.1 We will follow the procedures set out by the Leicestershire and Rutland Safeguarding Children Partnership (LRSCP) and take account of guidance issued by the DfE in Keeping Children Safe in Education 2024 to:
 - 19.1.1 Ensure we have a Senior Designated Safeguarding Lead (DSL), who is a member of the school/college leadership team, and a Deputy Safeguarding Lead for child protection/safeguarding who has received appropriate training and support for this role.



- 19.1.2 The Designated Safeguarding Lead role is written into their job description and clarifies the role and responsibilities including as defined in KCSiE 2024 Annex C.
- 19.1.3 Ensure we have a nominated governor responsible for child protection/safeguarding.
- 19.1.4 Ensure that we have a Designated Teacher for Looked After Children (LAC).
- 19.1.5 Ensure every member of staff (including temporary, supply staff and volunteers) and the governing body knows the name of the Senior Designated Safeguarding Lead, their deputies responsible for child protection, and their role.
- 19.1.6 Ensure all staff and volunteers understand their responsibilities in being alert to the signs of abuse and their responsibility for referring any concerns to the Designated Safeguarding Lead, or to children's social care/police if a child is in immediate danger.
- 19.1.7 Ensure all staff and volunteers are aware of the early help process and understand their role in making referrals or contributing to early help offers and arrangements.
- 19.1.8 Ensure that there is a whistleblowing policy and culture where staff can raise concerns about unsafe practice, and that these concerns will be taken seriously.
- 19.1.9 Ensure that there is a complaints system in place for children and families.
- 19.1.10 Ensure that parents understand the responsibility placed on the school and staff for child protection and safeguarding by setting out its obligations in the school prospectus and on the school's website.
- 19.1.11 Notify Children's Social Care if there is an unexplained absence for a child who is subject to a child protection plan and where no contact can be established with the child, or a parent or appropriate adult linked to the child.
- 19.1.12 Develop effective links with relevant agencies and cooperate as required with their enquiries regarding child protection matters, including attendance at child protection conferences.
- 19.1.13 Keep written records of concerns about children, even where there is no need to refer the matter immediately; documenting and collating information on individual children to support early identification, referral, and actions to safeguard.
- 19.1.14 Ensure all records are kept securely; We use CPOMS to electronically store all safeguarding records in a secure manner.
- 19.1.15 Ensure that we follow robust processes to respond when children are missing from education or missing from home or care.
- 19.1.16 Develop and then follow procedures where an allegation is made against a member of staff or volunteer.
- 19.1.17 Ensure safe recruitment practices are always followed.



- 19.1.18 Apply confidentiality appropriately.
- 19.1.19 Apply the LLRSCB escalation procedures if there are any concerns about the actions or inaction of social care staff or staff from other agencies.

20. Supporting Children and Working in Partnership

- 20.1 We recognise that children may not feel ready or know how to tell someone that they are being abused, exploited, or neglected, and/or they may not recognise their experiences as harmful. For example, children may feel embarrassed, humiliated, or being threatened. This could be due to their vulnerability, disability and/or sexual orientation or language barriers. We recognise that children who are abused or who witness violence may find it difficult to develop a positive sense of self-worth. They may feel helplessness, humiliation, and some sense of blame. The school may be the only stable, secure, and predictable element in the lives of children at risk. When at school their behaviour may be challenging and defiant or they may be withdrawn. This should not prevent staff from having a professional curiosity and speaking to the DSL if they have concerns about a child. It is also important that staff determine how best to build trusted relationships with children and young people which facilitate communication We also recognise that there are children who are more vulnerable than others, which include children with special educational needs and or disabilities.
- 20.2 All staff including volunteers are advised to maintain the attitude of 'it could happen here' where safeguarding is a concern, and when concerned about the welfare of the child should always act in the best interests of the child.
- 20.3 Our school/college will endeavour to support the pupil through:
 - 20.3.1 Developing the content of the curriculum through PHSE and as part of our wider Global Issues programme.
 - 20.3.2 Maintaining a school/college ethos which promotes a positive, supportive, and secure environment, and which gives pupils a sense of them being valued.
 - 20.3.3 The school behaviour policy, anti-bullying policy and child-on-child abuse policy which is kept up to date with national and local guidance and which is aimed at supporting vulnerable pupils in our school/college.
 - 20.3.4 Our school/college will proactively ensure that all children know that some behaviours are unacceptable and will need to be addressed but as members of our school/college they are valued and will be supported through the time required to deal with any abuse or harm that has occurred, or outcomes from incidents.
 - 20.3.5 Our college will address concerns and provide support through the pastoral team. The pastoral team may refer students to learning mentors, Relate counsellors or the school nurse if they feel this is necessary. Where appropriate the college makes use of an internal reflection room within the college, as well as the following provisions within the wider Trust: The Meadows, The Bridge, The Green Room, The Pioneer Centre.



- 20.3.6 Liaison with other agencies that support the pupil such as Children's Social Care (in line with the <u>Thresholds for access to services</u>, updated in September 2021); <u>Leicestershire Inclusion Service</u> and <u>Education</u> <u>Psychology Service</u>, and the <u>Children and Family Wellbeing Service</u>, etc.
- 20.3.7 Ensuring that, where a pupil leaves and is subject to a child protection plan, child in need plan or where there have been wider safeguarding concerns, their information is transferred to the new school immediately or within **5** working days and that the child's social worker is informed.
- 20.3.8 Ensuring that the vulnerability of children with special educational needs and or disabilities is recognised and fully supported by Mrs Nicola Coton.
- 20.3.9 Where a child discloses a concern or informs of an incident that has involved them in an incident involving sexual violence and or sexual harassment the staff member will ensure the child (victim) is taken seriously, kept safe and never be made to feel like they are creating a problem for reporting abuse, sexual violence, or sexual harassment.
- 20.3.10 The staff member if not the designated safeguarding lead Claire Greaves will be informed immediately, and actions taken in accordance with the school/college child-on -child/ sexual violence and sexual harassment between children in school and college policy.

21. Staff and Safe Recruitment

- 21.1 The leadership team and governing body/multi academy trust of the school/college will ensure that all safer working practices and recruitment procedures are followed in accordance with the guidance set out in KCSiE 2024 Part Three.
- 21.2 School leaders, staff and members of the governing body/trust will be appropriately trained in safer working practices and access safer recruitment training.
- 21.3 Statutory pre-employment checks and references from previous employers are an essential part of the recruitment process. We will ensure we adopt the appropriate necessary procedures to carry out the checks required and where any concerns arise, we will seek advice and act in accordance with national guidance.
- 21.4 The school/college has in place recruitment, selection, and vetting procedures in accordance with KCSiE 2024 Part Three and maintains a Single Central Record (SCR), which is reviewed regularly and updated in accordance with KCSiE 2024 Part Three paragraphs 206 to 351.
- 21.5 Staff will have access to advice on the boundaries of appropriate behaviour and will be aware of the Lionheart Code of Conduct (Guidance for Safer Working Practice for those Working with Children and Young People in Education Settings 2022), which includes contact between staff and pupils outside the work context. Staff can access a copy of this through our VLE.
- 21.6 Newly appointed staff and volunteers will be informed of our arrangements for safer working practices by Claire Greaves and Ruth Jones before beginning working and contact with pupils.



- 21.7 In the event of any complaint or allegation against a member of staff, the headteacher (or the Designated Safeguarding Lead) if the headteacher is not present, will be notified immediately. If it relates to the headteacher, the Chair of Governors will be informed without delay. We will respond to all allegations robustly and appropriately in collaboration with the Local Authority Designated Officer (LADO), LADO Allegation Officers or HR Service.
- 21.8 Staff may find some of the issues relating to child protection and the broader areas of safeguarding upsetting and may need support which should be provided by the school and their Human Resources Team.
- 21.9 Advice and support will be made available by the Safeguarding and Compliance Lead (SCL), LADO and LCC HR and where appropriate to the leadership team. The safeguarding team have access to half termly supervision from an external agency.
- 21.10 All new staff have a safeguarding induction prior to beginning work on site. Where appropriate, letters of assurance are obtained from external agencies. i (KCSiE 2024 Part Three Safer Recruitment).
- 21.12 Schools should obtain written confirmation from the alternative provision provider that appropriate safeguarding checks have been conducted on individuals working at the establishment, i.e., those checks that the school would otherwise perform in respect of its own staff.
- 21.13 At Sir Jonathan North, leaders ensure that all providers are fully risk assessed and have appropriate safeguarding procedures in place. Letters of assurance and all policies must be provided by providers prior to students commencing their placement.

22. Links to Other Local Authority Policies

- This policy, together with the following, should be read alongside and in conjunction with other policies and statutory guidance regarding the safety and welfare of children, including those adopted from Leicestershire County Council and the Leicestershire and Rutland Safeguarding Children Partnership (LRSCP).
- 22.2 The above together with the following will make up the suite of policies to safeguard and promote the welfare of children in this school:
 - College Behaviour Policy
 - Staff Code of Conduct ("Guidance for Safer working practice")
 - Anti-Bullying (including Cyberbullying)
 - Physical Interventions/Restraint (DfE Guidance "Use of Reasonable Force" and "Screening, searching and confiscation")
 - Special Educational Needs and Disability
 - Trips and visits
 - Work experience and extended work placements
 - First aid and the administration of medicines
 - Health and Safety
 - Relationships Education, Relationships and Sex Education and Health Education
 - Site Security
 - Equal Opportunities
 - Online safety



- Extended college activities
- 22.3 Our response to any disclosures or incidents involving sexual violence or child sexual harassment is as follows:

All students will be encouraged to report to a trusted adult in college all incidents of child on child abuse wherever it may have happened and will be taught about alternative ways of doing this both in college and elsewhere eg online via: tellsomeone@sirjonathannorth.org.uk. They will always be taken seriously and never given the impression that they are creating a problem by reporting their concern or made to feel ashamed. It is recognised that even where no reports are received, this does not mean that such abuse is not taking place. It could just be that it has not been reported. Where an incident has occurred or specific risks are identified, the details will be added to a safeguarding or behaviour record for the students concerned and a thorough investigation conducted by the DSL, where appropriate. A written risk assessment will be undertaken by the DSL in order to minimise the risk of further harm and to ensure the safety of all staff and students. Parents or carers of the students involved will be informed as soon as it is appropriate to do so. Support plans will be written and help offered, by different adults in college (to avoid a possible conflict of interest), to the alleged victim, the student or young person accused and any other students involved. A referral to any relevant outside agency will be made eg Police or Social Care. Detailed guidance and procedures are included in the linked guidance and college policies listed above.

The following steps will be taken to minimise the risk of child on child abuse:

- Staff training to ensure an understanding of what it is and how to recognise signs
- Promotion of a supportive environment by teaching about acceptable and unacceptable behaviours (including online) in both assemblies and the wider curriculum e.g. RSHE
- Clear procedures put in place to govern the use of mobile phones in college Appropriate staff supervision of students and identifying locations around the college site that are less visible and may present more risk to students

Leicestershire and Rutland Safeguarding Children Partnership Policy, Procedures and Practice Guidance link: https://llrscb.proceduresonline.com/index.htm

23. Raising Awareness - Roles and Responsibilities

- 23.1 All staff and volunteers: Safeguarding and promoting the welfare of children is everyone's responsibility. Everyone in our school/college who comes into contact with children and their families have a role to play in safeguarding children. All staff in our school/college/academy consider, always, what is in the best interests of children.
- 23.2 General All adults working with or on behalf of students have a responsibility to safeguard and promote their welfare. This includes a responsibility to be alert to possible abuse and to record and report concerns to staff identified with child protection responsibilities within the college. The names of the Designated



- Safeguarding Lead and Deputy Designated Safeguarding Leads for the current year are listed at the start of this document
- 23.3 All staff within our school/college/academy are particularly important as they are able to identify concerns early and provide help to children to prevent concerns from escalating.
- 23.4 All staff contribute to providing a safe environment in which children can learn by embedding and using the behaviour policy; promoting rewards and achievements; embedding learning routines.
- 23.5 Staff contribute to enabling a safe environment both in and when out of schools on trips or extended learning opportunities. Annual training is undertaking by all staff to ensure safe execution of trips. Where possible for day trips, a DSL will accompany a trip; if not a DSL will be constantly available at the end of the phone for advice and reporting concerns. A DSL will always accompany a residential trip.
- 23.6 All our staff are aware of the early help process and understand their role in this. This includes being able to identify emerging problems to recognise children who may benefit from early help. Staff know in the first instance to discuss their concerns with the Designated Safeguarding Lead and understand they may be required to support other agencies and professionals in assessments for early help.
- 23.7 We employ specific staff who work outside of the classroom and who engage with children, families, and partner agencies. These are the student support manager, learning support officers, assistant pastoral leaders, learning mentors and the attendance officer.
- 23.8 If parents wish to come into school to seek support and advice they are able to phone the man office, use the contact us email address, make an appointment in person or use the DSL email address.
- 23.9 We acknowledge the importance of children and social workers meeting during the school day where required Our DSLs work with social care and safeguarding partners to ensure children subject to child protection, child in need and LAC plans are kept safe, and the child's needs are met through open communication and regular meetings.
- 23.10 We signpost children, parents, and carers to for support, in school through our website, posters, newsletters and during meetings.

24. Safeguarding Training

- 24.1 All our staff are aware of systems within Sir Jonathan North Girls' College, and these are explained to them as part of staff induction, which include our child protection policy; the employee code of conduct and the role of the Designated Safeguarding Lead and Keeping Children Safe in Education 2024.
- 24.2 Our school/college/academy utilises an induction process when staff are inducted which includes the above, but also other policy and procedural information



- 24.3 All our staff receive safeguarding and child protection training which is updated every three years. In addition, to this training all staff members receive child protection and safeguarding updates when required, but at least annually.
- 24.4 The Designated Safeguarding Lead, under the direction of The Lionheart Trust provides training and ensures staff are kept up to date with any local or national changes to safeguarding guidance.
- 24.5 All our staff are aware of the process for making referrals to children's social care and for statutory assessments under the Children Act (1989) and understand the role they may have in these assessments.
- 24.6 The DSL helps staff to understand their role and the opportunities available, including any partnership work especially with social care and the local arrangements put in place by Leicestershire and Rutland Safeguarding Children Partnership (LRSCP) and know how to access the NSCP website and training opportunities. through the weekly staff briefing.
- 24.7 All our staff know what to do if a child is raising concerns or makes a disclosure of abuse and/or neglect. Staff will maintain a level of confidentiality whilst liaising with the Designated Safeguarding Lead and children's social care. Our staff will never promise a child that they will not tell anyone about a disclosure or allegation, recognising this may not be in the best interest of the child.

25. Staff Responsibilities

- 25.1 All staff have a key role to play in identifying concerns and provide early help for children. To achieve this, they will:
- 25.2 Establish and maintain an environment where children feel secure, are encouraged to talk and are listened to.
- 25.3 Ensure children know that there are adults in the school who they can approach if they are worried or have concerns.
- 25.4 Plan opportunities within the curriculum for children to develop the skills they need to assess and manage risk appropriately and keep themselves safe.
- 25.5 Lead and ensure robust arrangements and procedures are in place to effectively manage and regularly monitor the school/college online safety, and specifically appropriate filtering and monitoring on school devices and school networks which are reflected in this Child Protection Policy, including awareness of ease of access to mobile phone networks.
- 25.6 Attend training to be aware of and alert to the signs of abuse.
- 25.7 Maintain an attitude of "it could happen here" with regards to safeguarding.
- 25.8 Record their concerns if they are worried that a child is being abused and report these to the DSL as soon as practical that day. If the DSL is not contactable immediately a Deputy DSL should be informed.
- 25.9 Be prepared to refer directly to social care, and the police if appropriate, if there is a risk of significant harm and the DSL or their Deputy is not available.



- 25.10 Follow the allegations procedures if the disclosure is an allegation against a member of staff.
- 25.11 Follow the procedures set out by the LRSCP and take account of guidance issued by the DfE KCSiE 2024.
- 25.12 Support pupils in line with their child protection plan, child in need plan, LAC Care Plan.
- 25.13 Treat information with confidentiality but never promising to "keep a secret."
- 25.14 Notify the DSL or their Deputy of any child on a child protection plan or child in need plan who has unexplained absence.
- 25.15 Understand early help and be prepared to identify and support children who may benefit from early help, to include children who are frequently missing/goes missing from education, home or care, has experienced multiple suspensions, is at risk of being permanently excluded from schools, colleges and in alternative provision or a pupil referral unit, has a parent or carer in custody or is affected by parental offending.
- 25.16 Liaise with other agencies that support pupils and provide early help.
- 25.17 Ensure they know who the DSL and Deputy DSLs are and know how to contact them.
- 25.18 Have an awareness of the Child Protection Policy, the Behaviour Policy, the Staff Behaviour Policy (or Code of Conduct), procedures relating to the safeguarding response for children who go missing from education and the role of the DSL.
- 25.19 The college engages in learning opportunities or partnership work with such as the NSPCC, Police Community Support Officers (PCSOs), Relate counselling services, and the school nurse.

26. Senior Leadership/Management Team Responsibilities:

- 26.1 Contribute to inter-agency working in line with HM Working Together to Safeguard Children 2018 (updated December 2020) guidance.
- 26.2 Provide a co-ordinated offer of early help when additional needs of children are identified.
- 26.3 Ensure all staff, supply staff and volunteers are alert to the definitions of abuse and indicators, and through access to regular training opportunities and updates.
- 26.4 Ensure staff are alert to the various factors that can increase the need for early help.
- 26.5 Working with Children's Social Care, support their assessment and planning processes including the school's attendance at conference and core group meetings as appropriate.
- 26.6 Carry out tasks delegated by the multi academy trust such as training of staff and volunteers, safer recruitment and maintaining of a single central register.
- 26.7 Provide support and advice on all matters pertaining to safeguarding and child protection to all staff regardless of their position within the school.
- 26.8 Treat any information shared by staff or pupils with respect and follow agreed policies and procedures.



- 26.9 Ensure that allegations or concerns against staff including low-level concerns are dealt with in accordance with guidance from Department for Education (DfE) KCSiE 2024 Part Four 'Allegations made against/Concerns raised in relation teachers including supply teachers, other staff, volunteers, and contractors in Sections One and Two.
- 26.10 Leicestershire and Rutland Safeguarding Children Partnership (LRSCP) and Leicestershire County Council (LCC).

27. Teachers (including ECTs) and Headteachers – Professional Duty

- 27.1 The Teachers Standards 2012 (updated 13 December 2021) remind us that teachers, newly qualified teachers and headteachers should safeguard children and maintain public trust in the teaching profession as part of our professional duties.
- 27.2 The Children and Social Work Act of 2017, places responsibilities for Designated Teacher to have responsibility for promoting the educational achievement of children who have left care through adoption, special guardianship, or child arrangement orders or who were adopted from state care outside England and Wales.
- 27.3 The Designated teacher meets regularly with Looked After Children; is part of their transition to our school and attendance all PEP and LAC meetings. Their specific needs are highlighted to staff during staff training.

28. Designated Safeguarding Lead

- 28.1 We have a Senior Designated Safeguarding Lead who takes lead responsibility for safeguarding children and child protection who has received appropriate training and support for this role. The Snr Designated Safeguarding Lead is a senior member of the school leadership team, and their responsibilities are explicit in their job description.
- 28.2 We also have a Deputy Safeguarding Lead, who will provide cover for the Senior Designated Safeguarding Lead when they are not available. Our Deputy Safeguarding Lead has received the same training as our Senior Designated Safeguarding Lead. They will provide additional support to ensure the responsibilities for child protection and safeguarding children are fully embedded within the school ethos and that specific duties are discharged. They will assist the Senior Designated Safeguarding Lead in managing referrals, attending child protection conferences, reviews, core group meetings and other meetings of a safeguarding and protection nature to support the child/children.
- 28.3 Due to the size of your school and student numbers, there are additional Designated Safeguarding Officers named within your child protection policy.
- 28.4 All DDSLs have completed the required training and are overseen by the Snr Designated Safeguarding Lead, to ensure you fulfil your child protection responsibilities to meet the needs of the children/ young people on roll.
- 28.5 We acknowledge the need for effective and appropriate communication between all members of staff in relation to safeguarding pupils. Our Designated Safeguarding Lead will ensure there is a structured procedure within the school, which will be followed by all the members of the school community in cases of suspected abuse.



29. The Designated Safeguarding Lead is Expected To:

- 29.1 Manage Referrals:
 - 29.1.1 Refer cases of suspected abuse or allegations to the relevant investigating agencies.
 - 29.1.2 Support staff who make referrals to children's social care and other referral pathways.
 - 29.1.3 Refer cases where a person is dismissed or left due to risk/harm to a child and will make a referral to the Disclosure and Barring Service.
- 29.2 Ensure arrangements are in place year-round for all staff and volunteers to seek advice, support and inform of safeguarding concerns, or incidents and disclosures that inform children are at risk of harm, or abuse, harm or bullying or sexual harm or harassment has occurred.
- 29.3 Ensure appropriate systems are in place to manage and address online safety, access to mobile phone networks, especially for those children who are potentially at greater risk of harm, abuse, and exploitation and refer concerns where required linked to the PREVENT duty. Note: This preventing radicalisation section remains under review, following the publication of a new definition of extremism on the 14 March 2024.
- 29.4 The DSL and DSL team meet fortnightly, so each is fully informed and able to respond to the needs of children subject to safeguarding concerns. Safeguarding is also part of weekly link meetings between pastoral leaders and senior leaders.
- 29.5 Vulnerable students are identified by the pastoral team discussion with the DSL. These students have weekly safe and wellbeing checks and are discussed at the safeguarding core group.

30. Work With Others

- 30.1 Liaise with the headteacher/principal (where the Senior Designated Safeguarding Lead role is not carried out by the headteacher) to inform him/her of any issues and ongoing investigations.
 - 30.1.2 As required, liaise with the 'case manager' (as per Part Four of KCSiE 2024) and the LADO where there are child protection concerns/allegations that relate to a member of staff.
 - 30.1.3 Liaise with the case manager and the LADO/LADO Allegation Officer where there are concerns about a staff member.
 - 30.1.4 Liaise with staff on matters of safety and safeguarding and deciding when to make a referral by liaising with other agencies and acts as a source of support, advice, and expertise for other staff.
 - 30.1.5 Take part in strategy discussions or attend inter-agency meetings and/or support other staff to do so and to contribute to the assessment of children.



- 30.1.6 Liaise with the local authority and other agencies in line with Working Together to Safeguard Children 2023 and the local Leicestershire Safeguarding Children Partnership procedures and practice guidance.
- 30.1.7 The headteacher, designated safeguarding leads and governing body/trust are aware of the local arrangements put in place by Leicestershire and Rutland Safeguarding Children Partnership (LRSCP) and know how to access the LRSCP website and training.
- 30.2 The DSL will feedback information to other staff during staff briefings help to raise awareness of emerging threats and risks.
 - The DSL/ staff team contributes to developing the curriculum and learning experiences for children and staff through staff meetings, bulletins, staff notice board, briefings, and arranging additional classroom learning opportunities.
- 30.3 The college has effective links with agencies such as the NSPCC, Police, Love 4 Life, school nurse and Relate.
- 30.4 Undertake training
 - 30.4.1 Formal Designated Safeguarding Lead training will be undertaken at least every two years. Informal training and updating of knowledge and skills will be at regular intervals, undertaken at least annually.
 - 30.4.2 The Senior Designated Safeguarding Lead is responsible for their own training and should obtain access to resources or any relevant refresher training.
 - 30.4.3 The Senior Designated Safeguarding Lead is also responsible for ensuring all other staff with designated safeguarding responsibilities access up to date and timely safeguarding training and maintains a register or data base to evidence the training.
- 30.5 The following training is in place for all staff during 2024-25. Annual safeguarding training in August 2024; half termly modules on the following safeguarding issues:

Term	Autumn 1	Autumn 2	Spring 1	Spring 2	Summer 1	Summer 2
Details						
CPD Focus	CSE/CCE	Child on Child Abuse	E Safety	Mental Health and Self-Harm	Allegations	Prevent



31. The Training Undertaken Should Enable the Designated Safeguarding Lead to:

- 31.1 Understand the assessment process for providing early help and intervention through the Thresholds to access to services.
- 31.2 Have a working knowledge of how the Leicestershire and Rutland Safeguarding Children Partnership operates, the conduct of a child protection conference, and be able to attend and contribute to these effectively when required to do so.
- 31.3 Ensure that each member of staff has access to the child protection policy and procedures.
- 31.4 Understand the lasting impact that adversity and trauma can have, including on children's behaviour, mental health and wellbeing, and what is needed in responding to this in promoting educational outcomes.
- 31.5 Be alert to the specific needs of children in need, including those with special educational needs and or disabilities and young carers.
- 31.6 Be able to keep detailed, accurate, secure written records of concerns, rationale/ decisions and referrals.
- 31.7 Understand the Prevent Duty and provide advice and support to staff on protecting and preventing children from the risk of radicalisation and being grooming into extremist behaviours and attitudes (KCSiE 2024 Annex A and B).
- 31.8 Understand the reporting requirements for FGM.
- 31.9 Understand and support children to keep safe when online and when they are learning at home.
- 31.10 Encourage a culture of protecting children, listening to children and their wishes and feelings.
- 31.11 Raise awareness:
- 31.12 Ensure that the child protection policies are known, understood, and used appropriately.
- 31.13 Ensure that the child protection policy is reviewed annually in consultation with staff members, and procedures are updated and reviewed regularly and implemented, and that the governing body is kept up to date and actively involved.
- 31.14 Work strategically to ensure policies and procedures are up to date and drive and support development work within the school.
- 31.15 Ensure that the child protection policy is available to parents and carers and uploaded to the school website and make parents/carers aware that referrals may be made about suspected abuse or neglect.
- 31.16 Ensure all staff receive induction training covering child protection before working with children and can recognise and report any concerns immediately as they arise.



32. Child Protection File - The Senior Designated Safeguarding Lead is Responsible:

- for ensuring that when a child leaves the school or college their 'child protection,' 'child in need' file or 'confidential' file is transferred to the new school or college at the same time the child goes on roll of its new school or education provision.
- for keeping a record of the number of children open and subject to CP, CiN and LAC concerns is maintained and shared with the governing body annually.
- 32.3 for keeping a record or data on the cohort of children having or have had a social worker and social care involvement will be maintained.
- Our school/college will maintain, keep and storing records, where a concern about a child has been identified in accordance with statutory guidance in KCSiE 2024.
- the Senior DSL and DSL team ensure all concerns and incidents are reported, recorded, responded to through rigorous monitoring of the DSL email address.

There is a robust process in place for the transfer of information and individual case files, should a child move school or leave to go to either Elective Home Education, alternative education placement, or college which is in accordance with KCSiE 2024 Annex C page.

32.6 Availability - During term time the Senior Designated Safeguarding Lead (or a Deputy) will always be available (during school or college hours) for staff in the school or college to discuss any safeguarding concerns. In the absence of the Designated Safeguarding Leads a member of the senior leadership team will be nominated to provide cover. [Appropriate arrangements are in be in place all year round for any out of school hours' activities in line with the guidance contained in DfE KCSiE 2024 Part Two and Annex C].

33. Principal

- 33.1 The Headteacher of the school will ensure that:
 - 33.1.1 The policies and procedures adopted by the Trust, (particularly those concerning referrals of cases of suspected abuse, neglect and exploitation), are understood, and followed by all staff.
 - 33.1.2 The school, academy or college maintains an up-to-date Single Central Record (SCR) which is reviewed regularly and is compliant with statutory guidance.
 - 33.1.3 Sufficient resources and time are allocated to enable the Designated Safeguarding Lead and other staff to discharge their responsibilities, including taking part in strategy discussions and inter-agency meetings, and contributing to the assessment of children.
 - 33.1.4 All staff and volunteers feel able to raise concerns about poor or unsafe practice with regard to children, and such concerns are addressed sensitively and effectively in a timely manner in accordance with agreed whistle-blowing policies.



- 33.1.5 The Headteacher will ensure all staff including supply teachers and volunteers have access to and read and understand the requirements placed on them through: the school/college Child Protection Policy; the Staff Code of Conduct Policy.
- 33.1.6 The Headteacher will ensure there are mechanisms in place to assist staff to fully understand and discharge their role and responsibilities as set out in KCSiE 2024.
- 33.1.7 Where there is an allegation made against a member of staff (either paid or unpaid, including volunteers) that meets the criteria for a referral to the LADO, then the headteacher or principal will discuss the allegation immediately with the LADO (within 24 hours) and ensure that cases are managed as per Part Four: Allegations made against/Concerns raised in relation to teachers, including supply teachers, other staff, volunteers, and contractors in KCSiE 2022. If the allegation is against the Headteacher/Principal, then the Chair of the Governing Body will manage the allegation.
- Where an allegation is made against the executive principal, then the Chair of the Governing Body will manage the allegation.

34. Governing Body and Multi-Academy Trust

- 34.1 We recognise our Local Governing body and Trust has a strategic leadership responsibility for our school's/college's safeguarding arrangements and <u>must</u> ensure they comply with their duties under legislation and <u>must</u> have regarding to KCSiE 2024, ensuring policies, procedures and training in our school/college are effective and always comply with the law.
- 34.2 The Local Governing Body and Trust will be collectively responsible for ensuring that safeguarding arrangements are fully embedded within the school's ethos and reflected in the school's day to day safeguarding practices by:
 - 34.2.1 Ensuring there is an individual member of the governing body to take leadership responsibility for safeguarding and champion child protection issues in the school.
 - 34.2.2 Ensuring that the school has effective policies and procedures in line with statutory guidance (Working Together to Safeguard Children 2023) as well as with local LRSCP guidance and monitors the school's compliance with them.
 - 34.2.3 Ensuring that safeguarding policies and procedures are in place for appropriate action to be taken in a timely manner to promote a child's welfare.
 - 34.2.4 Recognising the importance of information sharing between agencies through the statutory guidance provided within KCSiE 2024 Annex C page 166 to 170 and paragraphs 56 to 57, 115 to 121, 375, to 390, 476, 540 and 543 and page 158, the additional clarification about GPDR and withholding information. Further information can be found on the College's website in a Data Protection compliance Statement and data Protection Policy.



- 34.2.5 Ensuring cooperation with the local authority and other safeguarding partners.
- 34.2.6 Appointing a Senior Designated Safeguarding Lead from the leadership team to take lead responsibility for child protection/safeguarding and that a Designated Teacher for Looked After Children is appointed and appropriately trained.
- 34.2.7 Ensuring that all staff, supply teachers and governors read and fully understand at least KCSiE 2024 Part One and or Annex A as a minimum and ensure that there are mechanisms in place to assist staff to understand and discharge their role and responsibilities as required within the guidance.
- 34.2.8 Ensuring that the governing body understands it is <u>collectively responsible</u> for the school's safeguarding arrangements, even though a governor will be nominated as the 'Safeguarding Governor' and person who will champion all safeguarding requirements.'
- 34.2.9 All members of the governing body will undertake safeguarding training to ensure they have the knowledge and information needed to equip them with the knowledge to provide strategic challenge to test and assure themselves that the safeguarding policies and procedures in place are effective and support the delivery of robust 'safeguarding arrangements and act as the 'critical friend'. This training must focus on their strategic role and not on operational procedures.
- 34.2.10 The Chair of Governors and named Safeguarding Governor will access role specific training to enable them to comply and discharge their child protection/ safeguarding responsibilities including should any allegations be made against the Headteacher/ Principal.
- 34.2.11 The Governing body will collectively ensure there is a training strategy in place for all staff, including the headteacher, so that child protection training is undertaken and refreshed in line with KCSiE 2024 and LRSCP guidance.
- 34.2.12 Ensuring that staff undergo safeguarding child protection training at induction and that there are arrangements in place for staff to be regularly updated to ensure that safeguarding remains a priority.
- 34.2.13 Ensuring that temporary staff and volunteers who work with children are made aware of the school's arrangements for child protection and their responsibilities.
- 34.2.14 Ensuring there are procedures in place to manage allegations against staff and exercise disciplinary functions in respect of dealing with a complaint KCSiE 2024 Part Four Section One.
- 34.2.15 Ensuring that arrangements/procedures are in place to manage and provide clarity on the process for sharing 'low level' concerns, which should be referred to within the school/college Staff Code of Conduct, (Allegations and concerns about a staff member that after initial consideration by the 'case manager' do not meet the criteria for a referral to LADO).



- 34.2.16 Ensuring a response if there is an allegation against the headteacher/principal by liaising with the LADO or other appropriate officers within the local authority.
- 34.2.17 Ensuring appropriate responses to children who go missing from education, particularly on repeat occasions, to help identify the risk of abuse, including child sexual exploitation and going missing in future.
- 34.2.18 Be aware of the issues involving the complexity of serious violence and sexual violence and sexual harassment between children and ensure the school/college has policy, procedures and staff are trained (including the DSL and Senior Leadership) to recognise and respond to incidents and resources to manage actions and support for those involved.
- 34.2.19 Be alert and respond to harmful online challenges and hoaxes, including providing information and advice to parents and carer and informing where to get help and support.
- 34.2.20 Be alert to the growing concerns involving knife crime and ensure the school/college works closely with the police and safeguarding partners to raise awareness of the impact of such crime and adopt proactive practice to address concerns locally and within the community.
- 34.2.21 Ensuring appropriate filters and monitoring systems are in place to protect children online and children are taught about keeping safe online through the curriculum.
- 34.2.22 Giving staff the opportunities to contribute and shape safeguarding arrangements and child protection policy.
- 34.2.23 When the schools/college premises are used for non-school/college activities the Governing body/trust will seek assurances that the body concerned has appropriate safeguarding and child protection policies and procedures in pace, and inspect them as needed, including liaising with the Headteacher/ trust. This will apply regardless of whether or not children who attend the provision are on the school or college roll.
- 34.2.24 Any safeguarding concerns involving outside organisations will be addressed through our school/college safeguarding policies and procedures and in line with Leicestershire Safeguarding Children Partnership procedures.
- 34.2.25 Prevent people who pose a risk of harm from working with children by adhering to statutory responsibilities to check staff who work with children, making decisions about additional checks and ensuring volunteers are supervised as required.
- 34.2.26 Ensure at least one person on an interview panel has completed safer recruitment training.
- 34.2.27 Inform any new prospective employees' candidate that our school/college will carry out online checks (KCSiE 2024 Part Three Safer Recruitment).



- 34.2.28 Recognising that certain children are more vulnerable than others, such as looked after children and children with special educational needs and disabilities.
- 34.2.29 Be open to accepting that child abuse and incidents can happen within the school/college and be available to act decisively upon them.

35. Looked After Children – The Role of Designated Teacher and the Designated Safeguarding Lead

- A teacher is appointed who has responsibility for promoting the educational achievement of children who are looked after. They have the appropriate training. The Designated Teacher will work with the Virtual School to ensure that the progress of the child is supported.
- 35.2 The Designated Safeguarding Lead will also have details of the child's social worker and the name of the Assistant Head of the Virtual School. The Designated Safeguarding Lead will work closely with the Designated Teacher, as we recognise that children may have been abused or neglected before becoming looked after. We will ensure their ongoing safety and wellbeing as well as supporting their education, through linking with their social worker, carers, and parents where appropriate.
- 35.3 We also recognise those children who were previously Looked-After potentially remain vulnerable and all staff will be informed of the importance of maintaining support for them through our school, academy, or college pastoral system. As a school, academy, or college we will continue to recognise the importance of working with agencies and take prompt actions where necessary to safeguard these children, who may remain vulnerable.

36. Children with Special Educational Needs

- 36.1 We recognise that children with special educational needs (SEN) and or disabilities can face additional safeguarding challenges on and offline. Children with SEN and or disabilities are especially vulnerable when identifying concerns due to their impaired capacity to resist or avoid abuse. They may have speech, language and communication needs which may make it difficult to tell others what is happening.
- 36.2 All staff are aware that additional barrier can exist when recognising abuse, neglect and exploitation for children with SEND and be more prone to peer group isolation or bullying (including prejudice-based bullying) than other children. They may not always show outward signs and may have communications barriers and difficulties in reporting challenges, especially involving exploitation or incidents involving child- on child harm, abuse, or harassment and particularly where that harassment or harm is of a sexual nature. Our staff's vigilance will be a supporting factor to keeping all children safe.

Staff should consider extra pastoral support and attention for these children, along with ensuring any appropriate support for communication is in place. Further information can be found in the DfE:



- SEND Code of Practice 0 to 25 years, and Supporting Pupils at School with Medical Conditions.
- Our policy reflects the fact that additional barriers can exist when recognising abuse, neglect, and exploitation in this group of children which include:
 - 36.3.1 assumptions that indicators of possible abuse such as behaviour, mood and injury relate to the child's disability without further exploration.
 - 36.3.2 children with SEN and disabilities can be disproportionally impacted by things like bullying, without outwardly showing any signs; and communication barriers and difficulties in overcoming their ability to disclose incidents or the risk of harm they feel subject to,
 - 36.3.3 addressing individual behaviour concerns and incidents considering the child's SEN and disabilities.
 - 36.3.4 recognising and having in place additional support for example to teach, advise, mentor and support children with SEND from online harms, hoaxes, bullying, grooming and radicalisation and enable them to have confidence and the ability to stay safe online, either in schools or outside the school environment.
- 36.4 Additional arrangements for pupils with SEND can be found in the following policies:
 - SCH SEND Policy Secondary/Primary

37. Acting Where Concerns are Identified.

- 37.1 Our staff recognise the difference between concerns about a child and a child in immediate danger.
- 37.2 If staff have concerns about a child, they will need to decide what action to take.

 Communication should take place with the Senior Designated Safeguarding Lead, to agree a course of action.
- 37.3 If a child is in immediate danger or risk of harm a referral will be made immediately to First Response and/or immediately to the police if at imminent risk of harm by the member of staff if required, with the Designated Safeguarding Lead being informed of the referral.
- 37.4 If a child chooses to tell a member of staff about alleged abuse, there are several actions that staff will undertake to support the child:
 - 37.4.1 The key facts will be established in language that the child understands, and the child's words will be used in clarifying/expanding what has been said.
 - 37.4.2 No promises will be made to the child, e.g., to keep secrets.
 - 37.4.3 Staff will stay calm and be available to listen.



- 37.4.4 Staff will actively listen with the utmost care to what the child is saying.
- 37.4.5 Where questions are asked, this should be done without pressurising, and only using open questions.
- 37.4.6 Leading questions should be avoided as much as possible.
- 37.4.7 Questioning should not be extensive or repetitive.
- 37.4.8 Staff will not/ should not put words in the child's mouth but will subsequently note the main points carefully.
- 37.4.9 A full written record will be kept by the staff duly signed and dated, including the time the conversation with the child took place, outline what was said, comment on the child's body language etc.
- 37.4.10 It is not appropriate for staff to make children write statements about abuse that may have happened to them or get them to sign the staff record.
- 37.4.11 Staff will reassure the child and let them know that they were right to inform them and inform the child that this information will now have to be passed on.
- 37.4.12 The Designated Safeguarding Lead will be immediately informed unless the disclosure has been made to them.
- 37.4.13 Information should be shared with children's social care without delay, either to the child's own social worker or to First Response. Children's Social Care will liaise with the police where required, which will ensure an appropriate police officer response rather than a uniformed response.
- 37.4.14 The Police would only therefore be contacted directly in an emergency or if a child is in immediate risk of harm, abuse, or danger.

Staff <u>should never</u> attempt to carry out an investigation of suspected child abuse by interviewing the child or any others involved, especially if a criminal act is thought to have occurred. The only people who should investigate child abuse and harm are Social Care, Police, or the NSPCC.

38. Confidentiality

- 38.1 We recognise that all matters relating to child protection are confidential; however, a member of staff must never guarantee confidentiality to children; children will not be given promises that any information about an allegation will not be shared.
- Where there is a child protection concern it will be passed immediately to the Designated Safeguarding Lead and/or to children's social care. When a child is in immediate danger children's social care/the police will be contacted.
- 38.3 The Headteacher or Senior Designated Safeguarding Lead will disclose personal information about a pupil to other members of staff, including the level of involvement of other agencies, only on a 'need to know' basis.
- 38.4 All staff are aware that they have a professional responsibility to share information with other agencies in order to safeguard children. They are aware that the Data



- Protection Act 1998 should not be a barrier to sharing of information where failure to do so would result in a child being placed at risk of harm. Staff should refer to the DfE Data Protection guidance for schools (DfE, 2024b).
- 38.5 We acknowledge further guidance can be found by visiting Leicestershire and Rutland Safeguarding Children Partnership website: https://lrsb.org.uk/

39. Information Sharing

- 39.1 Effective sharing of information between practitioners and local organisations and agencies is essential for early identification of need, assessment, and service provision to keep children safe. Serious Case Reviews (SCRs) now known as Rapid Reviews (RRs) have highlighted that missed opportunities to record and thereby understand the significance of sharing information in a timely manner can have severe consequences for the safety and welfare and well-being of children (Working Together to Safeguard Children, December 2023).
- 39.2 We will adopt the information sharing principles detailed in statutory safeguarding guidance contained within:
 - 39.2.1 DfE KCSiE 2024 has several sections which provide clarity on information sharing processes and GDPR including within Annex C which makes clear the powers to hold and use information when promoting children's welfare.
 - 39.2.2 Working Together to Safeguard Children 2023 paragraphs 28 to 33 and on pages 18 -20.
 - 39.2.3 Information Sharing: Advice for practitioners providing safeguarding services to children, young people, parents, and carers (which has been updated to reflect the General Data Protection Regulation (GPDR) and Data Protection Act 2018.
 - 39.2.4 Leicestershire and Rutland Safeguarding Children Partnership (NSCP) Policy and Practice Guidance.
 - 39.2.5 All staff, governors and volunteers undertake annual data protection training. This is logged via our VLE. New staff undertake this training as part of their induction.

40. Records and Monitoring [KCSiE 2024 Paragraphs 68 to 70, Part Four, Part Five, Annex C]

40.1 The college uses CPOMS for maintaining good quality records. These are audited weekly by the DSL and monitored to ensure they reflect the child's journey through the safeguarding system and engagement with statutory agencies, including Social Care, Early Help, Police, CAMHS, Health and other services.

Well-kept records are essential to good child protection practice. All staff are clear about the need to record, and report concerns about a student or students within the college. Records of concerns are typed up and sent immediately to the Designated Safeguarding Lead via the dsl@sirjonathannorth.org.uk. The Designated Safeguarding Lead is responsible for such records and for deciding at what point these records



should be shared with other agencies (in accordance with the Data Protection Act 2018 and GDPR principles).

Records relating to actual or alleged abuse or neglect are stored on CPOMS. Access to sensitive records are restricted to trained DSLs only. This is to protect individuals from accidental access to sensitive material by those who do not need to know.

Child protection records are stored securely, with access confined to specific staff, e.g. the Designated Safeguarding Lead (and relevant deputies) and the Principal.

Child protection records are reviewed regularly to check whether any action or updating is needed. This includes monitoring patterns of complaints or concerns about any individuals and ensuring these are acted upon. A case file chronology, summarizing case activity and significant events in the student's life, helps to enable effective monitoring. Any actions taken are clearly indicated.

- 40.2 Any concerns about a child will be recorded in writing within 24 hours. All records will provide a factual and evidence-based account and there will be accurate recording of any actions. Records will be signed, dated and, where appropriate, witnessed. Where an opinion or professional judgement is recorded this should be clearly stated as such. As well as keeping records of concerns, discussions and decisions, designated safeguarding leads should keep record of the rationale for any decisions made.
- 40.3 At no time should an individual teacher/member of staff or school be asked to or consider taking photographic evidence of any injuries or marks to a child's person; this type of behaviour could lead to the staff member being taken into managing allegations procedures. Body maps should be used in accordance with recording guidance and to support clarity for example of areas of injury, marks and bruising and or touching.
- 40.4 Any concerns should be reported and recorded without delay to the appropriate safeguarding services e.g., First Response or the child's social worker if already an open case to social care.
- 40.5 Our school/college will ensure all our files will be available for external scrutiny for example by a regulatory agency or because of a serious case review or audit.

41. Why Recording is Important.

- 41.1 Our staff will be encouraged to understand why it is important that recording is comprehensive and accurate and what the messages from serious case reviews are in terms of recording and sharing information. It is often when a chronology of information is pieced together that the level of concern escalates or the whole or wider picture becomes known.
- 41.2 Our school/academy Uses CPOMs to maintain electronic safeguarding files for all pupils.
- 41.3 We acknowledge without information being recorded it can be lost. This could be crucial information, the importance of which is not always necessarily apparent at the time. On occasions, this information could be crucial evidence to safeguard a child or be evidence in future criminal prosecutions.



42. The Child Protection (CP), Child in Need (CiN) or Confidential File [KCSiE 2024 Annex C pages 166 to 170 and paragraphs 68,102,122, 123, 540 and 543].

Note: The establishment of a Child Protection, CiN or Confidential Safeguarding file, which is separate from the child's main school file, is an important principle in terms of storing and collating information about children which relates to either a child protection or safeguarding concern or an accumulation of concerns about a child's welfare which are outside of the usual range of concerns which relate to ordinary life events. It should be borne in mind that what constitutes a 'concern' for one child may not be a 'concern' for another and the child's particular circumstances will need to be taken into account for example if a child is subject to a child protection plan, CiN plan or has looked after status (LAC). Professional judgement will therefore be an important factor when making this decision and will need clear links between pastoral staff and those with Designated Safeguarding Lead responsibilities in school.

- 42.1 The school/college will keep electronic records of concerns about children even where there is no need to refer the matter to First Response/Children's Social Care (or similar) immediately, but these records will be kept within the separate concerns file.
- 42.2 Records will be kept up to date and reviewed regularly by the Designated Safeguarding Lead, to evidence and support actions taken by staff in discharging their safeguarding arrangements. Original notes will be retained (but clearly identified as such) as this is a contemporaneous account; they may be important in any criminal proceedings arising from current or historical allegations of abuse or neglect.
- 42.3 The 'confidential' file can be active or non-active in terms of monitoring i.e., a child is no longer LAC, subject to a child protection plan or EHAF and this level of activity can be recorded on the front sheet as a start and end date. If future concerns arise, they can be re-activated and indicated as such on the front sheet and on the chronology as new information arises.

43. Transfer of Child's Child Protection File, Child in Need, LAC, or Confidential File (Statutory Requirement):

- 43.1 Our school/college will adopt the file transfer guidance contained in KCSiE 2024 and ensure when a child moves school/education provision their child protection/confidential file is sent securely to their new educational setting when the child starts/ leaves the school/academy.
- 43.2 For those children subject of social care and safeguarding agency involvement will ensure the file is able to evidence the child's journey and include key information as described in KCSiE 2024 should a child subject to social care involvement transfer schools, college, or education provider we will ensure the child's child protection or confidential file move is <u>transferred within 5 days</u> as required by KCSIE.
- 43.3 Our DSLs will liaise directly with the receiving school, college or alternative placement and hold a discussion to share important information to support the child's transfer to ensure the child remains safeguarded, has any 'reasonable adjustments' agreed, and put in place and to ensure the changes experienced by the child are as smooth as possible to enable a positive integration experience and engagement with new staff and learning.



43.4 In accordance with KCSiE 2024 we will maintain information on cohorts of children who have been open to social care, have had a social worker or who are closed to social care and may have returned to the family home. This information will only be considered for sharing 'if appropriate' with the new school or provider in advance of the child leaving to allow for the new school to continue supporting the children who have had a social worker or been victims of abuse, including those who are currently receiving support through the 'Channel' programme.

[KCSIE 2024 paragraph123 and pages 150 to 152 and Annex C]

44. Recording Practice

- 44.1 Timely and accurate recording will take place when there are any issues regarding a child.
- A recording of each and every incident or concern for the child will be made, including any telephone calls to other professionals. These will also be recorded on the chronology and kept within the child protection file for that child, as over time they are likely to help identify any patterns or emerging risks and needs. This will include any contact from other agencies who may wish to discuss concerns relating to a child. Actions will be agreed, and roles and responsibility of each agency will be clarified, and outcomes recorded.
- 44.3 The chronology will be brief and log activity; the full recording will be on the record of concern.
- 44.4 Further detailed recording will be added to the record of concern and will be signed and dated. Records will include an analysis of the event or concerns and will take account of the holistic needs of the child, and any historical information held on the child's file.
- Support and advice will be sought from social care, or early help whenever necessary. In this way a picture can emerge, and this will assist in promoting an evidence-based assessment and determining any action(s) that needs to be taken.
- 44.6 This may include no further action, whether an Early Help Assessment should be undertaken, or whether a referral should be made to First Response/Children's Social Care in-line with the Threshold for access to services published September 2021, or any later edition made available by Leicestershire and Rutland Safeguarding Children Partnership.
- 44.7 Such robust practice across child protection and in safeguarding and promoting the welfare of children will assist the school and DSL team in the early identification of any concerns which may require addressing further and the prevention of future harm, risk, or abuse.
- 44.8 The Designated Safeguarding Lead will have a systematic means of monitoring children known or thought to be at risk of harm (through the concern file and through an ongoing dialogue with pastoral staff). They will ensure that we contribute to assessments of need and support multi-agency plans for those children.



45. Educating Young People – Opportunities to Teach Safeguarding

[KCSiE 2024 paragraphs 124 to 140, Annex A & Annex C Online Safety paragraph 140 to 150].

- As a school/academy/college we will teach children in an age-appropriate way about youth produced imagery, on-line risks associated with social networking to prevent harm by providing them with the skills, attributes, and knowledge to help them navigate risks, including covering online safety, remote learning, filters and monitoring, information security, cyber-crime, reviewing online safety platforms and use of mobile technology. We will ensure appropriate filters and monitoring systems in place and regularly review their effectiveness.
- 45.2 The education we provide for online safety will take into account the need for children to learn using online technologies in a safe environment whether that be in school/college, in the home or in a community environment. This will also be taught as part of a wider RSHE programme, as well as through other subject areas and ICT.
- 45.3 We will ensure a whole school approach is in place to promote giving children the space to explore key issues in a sensitive way and the confidence to seek the support of adults should they encounter problems or online harms, hoaxes or harassment including involving incidents of sexual violence and sexual harassment between children.
- 45.4 We will carefully consider mobile phone use and the new filtering and monitoring standard required by DfE and how this is managed in school/college and ensure it is reflected in our mobile and smart technology policy. This will include where children have unlimited and unrestricted access to the internet via mobile phone networks (i.e., 3G, 4G and 5G).
- 45.5 Our arrangements will be regularly reviewed to address this additional area of safeguarding as technologies change on a regular basis and having access to smart technology could mean some children, whilst at school/college, sexually harass, bully, and control others via their mobile and smart technology, share indecent images consensually and non-consensually (via large chat groups) and view and share pornography and other harmful content.
- 45.6 Our RSHE policy can be found on our website. This is delivered as part of our weekly PDC lesson.
- 45.7 We will send out to parents/carers an e-safety newsletter each term to provide the latest information on how to keep children safe online.

46. Helplines and Reporting

46.1 Children can talk to a Child Line counsellor 24 hours a day about anything that is worrying them by ringing 0800 11 11 or in an online chat at https://www.childline.org.uk/get-support/1-2-1-counsellor-chat/



- Where staff members feel unable to raise an issue with their employer, or feel they have a genuine concern that is not being addressed we acknowledge they may wish to consider whistleblowing channels. Likewise, if parents and carers are concerned about their child, they can contact the NSPCC Helpline by ringing 0800 028 028 0295, or by emailing help@nspcc.org.uk
- 46.3 Advice and information for parents

CHILDLINE 0800 1111 - A free and confidential helpline for children and young people in the UK. Lines are open 24 hours a day, 7 days a week.

- **NSPCC 0808 500 5000** Advice, guidance, help and support or to take action on your behalf if you have concerns about a child who is either being abused or at risk of abuse.
- **SAMARITANS 116123** 24 hour phone line or find further information on their website: https://www.samaritans.org/
- TALK TO FRANK www.talktofrank.com Confidential drugs information and advice 24 hours a day. Telephone 0300 1236600
- MIND 0300 123 3393 Confidential help on a range of mental health issues. find further
 information on their website: https://www.mind.org.uk/
- **HEALTH FOR TEENS** https://www.healthforteens.co.uk/ A different way for young people aged 11-16 to learn about their health.
- **EDUCATE AGAINST HATE** https://educateagainsthate.com/ A useful Website that gives practical advice and information on protecting children from extremism and radicalisation.
- **BARNADOS** https://www.barnardos.org.uk/ Useful information for parents, carers and young people.
- **FAMILY LIVES (BULLYING UK)** https://www.bullying.co.uk/ Useful information regarding bullying including cyberbullying.
- CRUSE BEREAVEMENT CARE <u>www.cruse.org.uk</u>
- YOUNG MINDS is the UK's leading charity committed to improving the emotional well being
 and mental health of children and young people and empowering their parents and carers.
 You can find a <u>confidential parents helpline</u>, information about their campaigns, their
 publications and help and guidance for children and young people. They also advise
 professionals including teachers, school nurses, social workers and counsellors.
- LEICESTERSHIRE POLICE WEBSITE for children and parents www.leics.police.uk/kidsandteens
- INTERNET MATTERS <u>www.internetmatters.org</u>
- BBC PARENT ONLINE: KNOW YOUR CHILD www.bbc.co.uk/webwise/a-z/
- PACE http://paceuk.info/
- CEOP http://ceop.police.uk/safety-centre/
- SAFER INTERNET DAY www.saferinternet.org.uk/advice-centre/parents-and-carers
- KIDSMART INFORMATION FOR PARENTS www.kidsmart.org.uk/parents/
- INTERNET WATCH FOUNDATION www.iwf.org.uk
- YOUNG STONEWALL www.youngstonewall.org.uk
- Anxiety UK is a user-led organisation that supports anyone with anxiety, phobias, panic attacks or other anxiety-related disorders. 03444 775 774 or text 07537 416 905
- Beat act as a champion, guide and friend to anyone affected by eating disorders, giving
 individuals experiencing an eating disorder and their loved ones a place where they feel
 listened to, supported and empowered. 0808 801 0711
- MindEd for Families give safe and reliable advice to parents and carers about young people's mental health.



- **The Mix** is the UK's free, confidential helpline service for young people under 25 who need help, but don't know where to turn. **0808 808 4994**
- **Moodscope** exist in order to help people to positively manage their moods.
- The National Association for Children of Alcoholics (NACOA) provide a free helpline and support service to help address the needs of children growing up in families where one or both parents suffer from alcoholism or a similar addictive problem. 0800 358 3456
- National Self Harm Network is a forum that provides support for individuals who self harm, and for families and carers that may be affected by self harm.
- **Papyrus** gives non-judgemental support, advice and information for those dealing with suicide, depression or emotional distress. **08000 68 41 41**
- Young Minds provides information, advice and training for young people, parents, carers and professionals.

USEFUL CONTACTS

101 The police non emergency number

101 is to report crime and other concerns that do not require an emergency response for example if property has been damaged or you suspect illegal activity

ChildLine

Call free on 08001111 or get in touch online via the website.

CAMHS Family Therapy Team

A new service that has been set up for families across Leicester and Leicestershire. Families can ring and self refer for support. <u>0116 2952909</u>

Female Genial Mutilation

If you are concerned or worried about yourself or your friends you can ring this number: 0116 454 1004.

Alternatively the NSPCC run a FGM helpline. It is free, anonymous and available 24/7: 0800 0283550 or email fgmhelp@nspcc.org.uk

Forced marriage

If you have concerns that you or someone you know may be forced into a marriage against your wishes or before you are legally old enough please contact 02070080151.

Channel

Channel is a voluntary multi-agency programme to support individuals who may be vulnerable to being drawn in to extremist behaviour. It is part of the Prevent strategy. Please call Channel on 0116 2486727 and Prevent on 0116 2733459.

USEFUL WEBSITES

Bullying

- Bounce back from Bullying
- Stopbullying
- NSPCC Bullying and Cyberbullying



Child Sexual Exploitation

- NSPCC Child Sexual Exploitation
- Barnardos Sexual Exploitation

Counter Terrorism

• What Is Prevent?

NSPCC

• NSPCC Website

CAMHS helpline

• CAMHS information for parents

Health

- Healthy together
- 0116 2256000 24 hour line

Listening services

- <u>Kooth</u>
- <u>ChildLine</u>

young minds

• <u>Information for parents</u>

The following appendices are a part of this policy:

Appendix 1 LCC LA Flow Chart 2024-2025 'What to do if you are worried a child is being

abused or at risk of harm, neglect, or online harm.

Appendix 2 Low Level Concerns Policy.



Appendix 1

Name of School/Academy/AP Child Protection & Safeguarding Flow Chart 'What to do if you are worried a child is being abused, at risk of harm or neglect'

Actions where there are concerns about a child's welfare in and outside of school.

Be alert to signs of abuse, question unusual behaviour or changes to presentation.

Where a child discloses abuse, neglect, sexual violence, sexual harassment, online harm, exploitation.

- Listen to what they say, keep calm, reassure they are right to tell, and you will take
 action to help keep them safe.
- Inform them you need to share the information and what you are going to do next
- Do not promise confidentiality, you will need to share/ report the information to appropriate services.
- DO NOT DELAY, take any immediate necessary action to protect the child and ensure the Designated Safeguarding Lead is informed or member of SLT in the DSL's absence.

Discuss concerns with the Designated/Named Safeguarding Lead

- The DSL will consider further actions including consultation with First Response (if a new concern).
- Concerns and discussion, decisions and reasons for decision should be recorded in writing and a 'confidential concerns' or a 'child protection' file should be opened, stored in line with the school child protection policy.
- At all stages the child's circumstances should be kept under review and re-refer if concerned to ensure the child's circumstances improve – the child's best interests must come first.

Safeguarding concern Still have concerns - Refer to First Response (MARF) Resolved /no longer held Support has been agreed, record Have child/families' personal details to hand and be decisions and any follow up needed. clear about concern/allegations. Complete referral form. Unmet needs identified **NSPCC** Whistle First Response 0116 305 0005 Decide what actions are blowing Where safe consider Early Help Tel: 0800 028 0285 needed to support the Service child. Police Tel:101 If the child is at immediate risk dial 101 and ask for assistance Consult with the Record all decisions and actions, child young person, working to agreed outcomes and family, and relevant within timescales. Escalate any agencies: Agree emerging threats/concerns by adopting support, refer to LRSCP guidance Leicestershire and Rutland Thresholds for access Safeguarding Children Partnership to services (September procedures. 2021) <u>llrscb.proceduresonline.com/index.htm</u>

Contacts: For any allegations/concerns regarding an adult who works with (in either paid/voluntarily) employment with children contact Jude Atkinson/Lesley Booth 0116 454 2440 (City)

LA Safeguarding Officers: Julie Chapaneri 0116 454 3076 (City); Mohammed Patel 0116 454 1454 (City)



Appendix 2

Low-level Concerns Policy

1. Purpose

- 1.1 This policy sets out a framework whereby staff are expected to report concerns, no matter how small, about their own behaviour or that of another member of staff, volunteer, supply teacher, contractor or other person working in school. Its purpose is to help create and embed a culture of openness, trust and transparency in which the clear values and expected behaviour set out in the "Guidance for safer working practice for those working with children and young people in education settings" (Feb 2022) (sometimes called the safeguarding code of conduct) are lived, monitored, and reinforced.
- 1.2 The policy should be read in conjunction with the current statutory guidance "Keeping Children Safe in Education" Part 4, Section 2.

2.0 Who does the policy apply to?

2.1 This policy applies to all staff and other individuals who work or volunteer in school.

3.0 Definition of a low-level concern

- 3.1 A low-level concern is any concern, no matter how small, even if no more than causing a sense of unease or a 'nagging doubt', that a person working in or on behalf of the school may have acted in a way that:
 - is inconsistent with the "Guidance for safer working practice" (Feb 2022), including inappropriate conduct outside of work, and
 - does not meet the allegations threshold or is otherwise not considered serious enough to make a referral to the LADO

4.0 Reporting low-level concerns

- 4.1 Where a low-level concern has been identified this will be reported as soon as possible to the **headteacher**. However, it is never too late to share a low-level concern if this has not already happened.
- 4.2 Where the headteacher is not available, the information will be reported to the Designated Safeguarding Lead or Deputy (ie the most senior member of SLT acting in this role).
- 4.3 Low-level concerns about the Designated Safeguarding Lead will be reported to the headteacher and those about the headteacher will be reported to the Chair of Governors. A low-level concern about a supply teacher or contractor will be reported to their employer.
- 4.4 Where the low-level concern has been reported to the Designated Safeguarding Lead, they will inform the headteacher of the details as soon as possible.



5.0 Recording concerns

- 5.1 A summary of the low-level concern should be written down, signed, timed, dated and shared by the person bringing the information forward.
- 5.2 Where concerns are reported verbally to the headteacher a record of the conversation will be made by the headteacher which will be signed, timed, and dated.

6.0 Responding to low-level concerns

- 6.1 Where a low-level concern has been raised this will be taken seriously and dealt with promptly. The headteacher will:
 - Speak to the person reporting the concern to gather all the relevant information
 - Speak to the individual about the concern raised to ascertain their response, unless advised not to do so by the LADO or Police (HR advice may also need to be taken).
 - Where necessary further investigation will be carried out to gather all relevant information. This may involve speaking to any potential witnesses.
 - The information reported and gathered will then be reviewed to determine whether the behaviour,
 - i) is consistent with the "Guidance for safer working practice for those working with children and young people in education settings" (Feb 2022): no further action will be required,
 - ii) constitutes a low-level concern: no further action is required, or additional training/guidance/support may be required to rectify the behaviour via normal day to day management processes. The employee should understand that failure to improve or a repeat of the behaviour may lead to further action being taken, e.g. either via the Performance Management Policy or Disciplinary Policy.
 - iii) is serious enough to consult with or refer to the LADO: a referral should be made to the LADO and advice taken from HR. In this case the school's Managing Allegations procedure within the Safeguarding Policy and Disciplinary Policy will be followed.
 - iv) when considered with any other low-level concerns that have previously been raised about the same individual, should be reclassified as an allegation and referred to the LADO or Police: a referral should be made to the LADO and advice taken from HR. In this case the school's Managing Allegations procedure within the Safeguarding Policy and Disciplinary Policy will be followed.
 - Records will be made of, i) all internal conversations including any relevant witnesses, ii)
 all external conversations eg with the LADO iii) the decision and the rationale for it, iv)
 any action taken

7.0 Can the reporting person remain anonymous?

7.1 The person bringing forward the concern will be named in the written record. Where they request to remain anonymous this will be respected as far as possible. However, there may



be circumstances where this is not possible e.g. where a fair disciplinary investigation is needed or where a later criminal investigation is required.

8.0 Should staff report concerns about themselves (i.e. self-report)?

8.1 It may be the case that a person finds themselves in a situation which could be misinterpreted, or might appear compromising to others; or they may have behaved in a manner which on reflection they consider falls below the standard set out in the "Guidance for safer working practice". In these circumstances they should self-report. This will enable a potentially difficult situation to be addressed at an early opportunity if necessary.

9.0 Where behaviour is consistent with the "Guidance for safer working practice" (Feb 2022)

9.1 Feedback will be given to both parties to explain why the behaviour was consistent with the "Guidance for safer working practice".

10.0 Should the low-level concerns file be reviewed?

10.1 The records will be reviewed periodically, and whenever a new low-level concern is added, so that potential patterns of concerning, problematic or inappropriate behaviour can be identified and referred to the LADO if required. A record of these reviews will be retained.

11.0 References

11.1 Low-level concerns will not be included in references unless a low-level concern, or group of concerns, has met the threshold for referral to the LADO and found to be substantiated.

12.0 What is the role of the Governing Body?

12.1 The headteacher will regularly inform the Governing Body about the implementation of the low-level concerns policy including any evidence of its effectiveness e.g. with relevant data. The Safeguarding Governor may also review an anonymised sample to ensure that these concerns have been handled.